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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To

The Members of
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial
Statements”). .

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on standalone
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report:

SrNo | Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

1. Impairment of financial assets as at | > Read and assessed the Company’s accountjig. PETE AN
balance sheet date (expected credit policies for impairment of financial assets”an
losses): their compliance with ind AS 109 and,\.th
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provide for impairment of its loan
receivables (designated at amortised
cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income) using the
expected credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL
involves an estimation of probability-
weighted loss on financial instruments
over their life, considering reasonable
and supportable information about past
events, current conditions, and
forecasts of future economic conditions
which could impact the credit quality of
the Company’s loans and advances.

In the process, a significant degree of
judgement has been applied by the
management for:

o Staging of loans (i.e. classification in
‘significant increase in credit risk’
(“SICR”) and ‘default’ categories);

e Grouping of borrowers based on
homogeneity by using appropriate
statistical techniques;

e Estimation of behavioural life;

e Determining macro-economic
factors impacting credit quality of
receivables;

e Estimation of losses for loan
products with no/ minimal historical
defaults.

Ind AS 109 reqwres the Company to o pproved by the Board
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of Directors.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the
management estimates by understanding the
process of ECL estimation and related
assumptions and tested the controls around
data extraction and validation.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based
on their past-due status to check compliance
with requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample
of performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether
any SICR or loss indicators were present
requiring them to be classified under higher
stages.

Assessed the additional considerations applied
by the management for staging of loans as SICR
or default categories in view of Company’s
policy on one time restructuring.

Tested the ECL model, including assumptions
and underlying computation. Assessed the
floor/ minimum rates of provisioning applied by
the Company for loan products with inadequate
historical defaults

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic
factors.

Assessed disclosures included in the financial
statements in respect of expected credit losses.

N

Sales / Assignment of Financial Assets

Read and assessed the Company’s accounting
policies for computation and accounting of sales
/ assignment of loan portfolios as per the
provisions of Ind AS 109.

Read and assessed the contracts entered by the
Company for sale/assignment to verify the
gains/ losses on the transactions.

Verified the procedures followed by the
company while carrying out the
sale/assignment.

Verification of confirmation and fair valuation of
Security receipts.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is respensible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board'’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
infermation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”] with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with IND AS and the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility alsc includes
maintenarce of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and applfation of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial \.0'1trols that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our chjectives are to obtzin reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due tc fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurarice is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted. in accordance with SAs will always detect-a material misstatement when it ey&ﬁ’ﬁ%
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggréga S
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis o# hese
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s S
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due te: fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invoive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Cenclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis .of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that @ material uncertainty exists, we are requiréd to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statéments or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern. '

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with reievant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine tl/mse
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the cu;rent
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report uinIESs
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare C|rcumstance§;'\
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we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in

the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

[} As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b

—r

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii}  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for whrc
there were any material foreseeable losses]; g’ :’

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educataon\é\\
Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv)] The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 57(viii)(A) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

v) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 57(viii)(B) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shali,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

| vi) Basad on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

vii) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

viii) No comments have been offered as regards the maintenance of books ef account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility under Rule
11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 since the said requirements under proviso
to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company for
the financial year ended on March 31, 2023.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 1005.1HE}WW

Mayuresh V. Zele
Partner
Membership No: 150027

UDIN :23150027BGYKGI8532
Place :Mumbai

Date :May 16,2023
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph | under the heading “Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of
our report of even date)

i
aj
A) The Company has maintained preper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and location of property, plant and equipment for the year.

8) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantiiative
details and location of intangible assets.

b) The Company has not physically verified its fixed assets during the year, however there is a regular
programme of verification in a phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion,
is rcasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of |ts assets

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of |mmovabfe Uropemes
(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
.executed ir favour of the lessee), are held in the name of the Company.

d) The company has neither revalued its PPE (including Right of Use assels) nor intangible assets or
both during the year.

e) As per the information and explanation provided to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any benami property under the ‘Benarmi Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)’ and rules made thereunder.

a) The Company business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has availed working
capital limits from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly statements filed
bv the company are in agreement with the books of accounts.

i.
a) As per the information and explanations given to us, the principal business of the company is to
give loans and hence clause iii(a) of the order is not applicable.

b) As per the information and explanations given to us, the investments made and Icans provided by
the company, are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

Company has not given any guarantees, security, and advances in the nature of loans.

¢} Inrespect of the loans/ advances in nature of loan, granted by the company as part of is busmess —

the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by athe
Company. Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practlcabie te
furnish entity-wise details of amount, due date of repayment or receipt and the extent of delay (as;
suggested in the Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of india for the reporting under this clause) in this report, in respect of loans and advances which
wwmmw
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wﬂmmm
_werD not regaid/paid when they are due or were repaid/paid with a delay, in the normal course of
leriding business.

Further, except for those instances where there are delays or defaults in repayment of principal
and/or interest as at the balance sheet date, in respect of which the Company has disclosed asset
classification/staging of loans in note 12.2 to the standalone financial statements in accordsnce
with Indian Accounting (Ind AS) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the parties
are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest, as
apglicabie.

) lirrespect of the loans/ advances in nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more than ninety
days (including cases classified as non-performing asset (NPA) as per RBI guidelines) as at March
31, 2023 and the details of the number of such cases, are disclosed in note 12.2 to the standalone
financial statements. In such instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps have been by the Company
for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

-e) In our opinion and based on the information and explanation given to us, the cormpany is in the
Lusiness of giving loans, hence this clziise is not applicable.

f)  According to the informaticn and explanation given to us, the compaeny has not granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or w:thout specifying any terms or
period of repayment,

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act 2013 are appiicable and hence not commented upon.

V. in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted any deposits or the amounts deemed to be deposit as per the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable to the company.

vi.  The Company is not in the business of saie of any goods. Hence the provisions of Clause 3(vi) of the

Order are not applicable to the Company.

vii.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing with the
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues, wherever

applicable. The provisions relating to duty of excise, duty of custom, sales tax, value added tax, ard s

service tax are not applicable to the Company. According to the information and explanations gwen N AN

12 us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues were outstanding as at Mag_rch

21, 2623 for a period of more than 6 months from the date they became payable. 4

) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no dues in respect of Income’ /¢50~

Tax, Duty of Excise, Duty of Customs, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax and Value
Added Tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except for the following.

S ST T, Y P L M e
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Name of the Nature of Dues Amount (Rs. In Period to which Forum where the
Statute millions) the amount dispute is
relates pending

GST Act ITC Reversal 0.29 2018-19 Appellate

Authority
GST Act ITC Reversal 0.27 2019-20 Appellate

Authority

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions or income, not recorded in

the books of account, have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

a. Inouropinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not
defaulted in repayments of dues from any lender during the year.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not declared as willful
defaulter by any bank or Financial Institution or any lender.

c. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management,
term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d. According to the information and explanation given to us, the funds raised on short term basis
have not been utilized for long-term purposes.

e. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence clause ix(e)
of the order is not applicable.

f.  The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence clause ix(f) of
the order is not applicable.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
records of the Company, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer during the year. Hence the reporting requirement under clause 3(x)(a) is not
applicable to the company.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or privates——-x
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) du ring tth‘:"": &
year. Hence the reporting requirement under clause 3(x)(b) is not applicable to the company. (

Xi.
a. According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud on or by the company, by its
officers and employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, no report U/s 143(12)
of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor, predecessor auditor or by us in

wwL_@wwmw
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Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government,

€. According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle-blower complaints have been
received during the year by the company.

Xii.  Ir our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(xii){a} to
3{xii){c)of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of
the Company, the transactions entered with related parties are in compliance with provisions of
section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such transactions are disclosed in
the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv.
a. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b. The reports of the Internal Auditors of the company issued till date for the period under audit were
considered by us.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of records of the Company, the Company during the year has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the directors covered under the provisions
of sec 192 of the Act and accordingly the provisions of clause (xv} of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

xvi.
a. Inour opinion, the Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934
{2 of 1934) and accordingly the registration certificate is obtained by the Company.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not conducted Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from
the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

¢. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBI. Hence the clause 3{xvi)(c }of the
Report is not applicable.

d. According to the information and explanation given to us, there is one Core Investment Company
{CIC) as part of the Group.

xvii. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not incurred cash losses in
the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year and accordingly, the rep \
requirement under clause 3{xviii} of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.

&
Xix. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, agemgd{k mf\//
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
inforrmation accompanying the financial statements, and our knowledge of the BOD and management
plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report and
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that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing as at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of 1 year from the balance sheet date.

XX.

a. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no unspent amount in respect
of other than ongoing projects which are required to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule
VIl to the Companies Act, within a period of 6 months of the expiry of the financial year in
compliance with second proviso to Sec 135 (5) of the said Act.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no unspent amount in respect
of ongoing project which are required to be transferred to special account in compliance with the
provision under section 135(6) of the said Act.

xxi. The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements and hence the provisions of
Clause of 3(xxi)is not applicable.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registyation Number: 100515W

=
-

Mayuresh V. Zele

Partner

Membership No: 150027

UDIN :23150027BGYKGJ8532
Place :Mumbai

Date :May 16, 2023
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED

{Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Manageiment’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Fmanelal'f;

Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A companyrs
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain! 'to

the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaction"'s'\'/é,ﬁ.dam

——

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded’/coo™

as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
%w_—__—“.%__—*%
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Chartered Accountants

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2023, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 100515W

Mayuresh V. Zele
Partner

Membership No: 150027
UDIN :23150027BGYKGI8532
Place : Mumbai.

Date :May 16, 2023
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

ASSETS

Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(c) Securities held for trading

(d) Trade receivables

(e) Loans

(f) Investments

(g) Other financial assets

Non-financial assets

(a) Current tax assets (net)

(b) Deferred tax assets (net)

(c) Property, plant and equipment

(d) Intangible assets under development
(e) Other intangible assets

(f) Other non-financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities

(a) Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

(b) Debt securities

(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities)

(d) Subordinated liabilities

(e) Other financial liabilities

Non-financial liabilities

(a) Current tax liabilities (net)
(b) Provisions

(c) Other non-financial liabilities

Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registrgtion Number : 100515W

per Mayuresh V. Zele
Partner
Membership no: 150027

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 16, 2023

As at As at
Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
8 267.13 166.41
9 119.37 139.57
10 178.13 50.29
11 35.21 19.64
12 5,443.67 10,236.43
13 3,115.40 1,540.98
14 826.19 38.96
9,985.10 12,192.28
15 72.53 63.96
16 36.54 117.06
17 26.49 17.50
18 0.00 92.94
19 112.26 0.77
20 112.31 158.11
360.13 450.34
10,345.23 12,642.62

21
- 0.89
57.27 53:17
22 889.88 2,804.43
23 705.60 1,774.29
24 2,190.60 2,153.18
25 1,021.92 673.97
4,865.27 7,459.93
26 59.17 44.02
27 12.95 11.38
28 41.34 40.00
113.46 95.40
29 429.50 429.50
30 4,937.00 4,657.79
5,366.50 5,087.29
10,345.23 12,642.62

1 to 64

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

i
Shilpa Gattani

Director
DIN: 05124763

Hitesh Bhadada
Chief Financial Officer

Phanindranath Kakarla

Director
DIN: 02076676
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Revenue from operations
Interest income

Dividend income

Fee and commission income

Net gain on fair value changes

Total revenue from operations

. Other income

Total Income

Expenses

Finance costs

Impairment on financial instruments
Employee benefits expense

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Other expenses

Total expenses

. Profit before tax

—

Tax expenses:
Current tax

(1) Current tax

(2) Short / (Excess) provision for earlier years
Deferred tax

. Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each):
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. D. Apte & Co.

Note For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
31 1,351.19 1,560.55
32 31.40 15.72
33 (95.60) 162.20
1,286.99 1,738.47

34 10.22 35.33
1,297.21 1,773.80

35 647.86 827.31
36 (189.48) (117.50)
37 236.33 215.72
17 & 19 10.56 34.67
38 220.93 559.58
926.20 1,519.78

371.01 254.01
39 12.63 23.73
12.63 29.52
- (5.79)
39 80.52 45.59
277.86 184.69
42 0.88 (0.39)
39 . ;
0.88 (0.39)
278.75 184.30

4 6.47 4.30

6.47 430

1to 64

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Phanindranath Kakarla
Director

Director
DIN: 05124763 DIN: 02076676

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registrgfon Number : 10

per Mayuresh V. Zele
Partner
Membership no: 150027

Hitesh Bhadada
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 16,2023




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

(a) Equity share capital

Outstanding | Issued during | Outstanding | Issued during | Outstanding
as on April 01, the year as on March the year as on March
2021 31,2022 31,2023
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up 42950 0.00 429.50 0.00 429.50
(Equity shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid-up)
429.50 0.00 429.50 0.00 429.50
(b) Other Equity
Capital Securities Deemed Special Reserve| Debenture Retained Total
Reserve Premium capital under Section | redemption Earnings
Account contribution - | 45-1C of the reserve
Equity shares | Reserve Bank
of India Act,
1934
Balance at April 01, 2021 8.18 3,112.08 5.94 315.86 67.84 959.86 4,469.76
Profit for the year - - - - - 184.69 184.69
Remeasurement profit on defined benefit plans - - - - - (0.39) (0.39)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - - 184.30 184.30
Transfers to / (from) retained earnings - - - 36.94 - (36.94) (0.00)
Reversal of ESOPs charges on cancellation - - - - - 3.73 3.73
Balance at March 31, 2022 8.18 3,112.08 5.94 352.80 67.84 1,110.95 4,657.79
Profit for the year - - - - - 277.86 277.86
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plans - - - - - 0.88 0.88
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - - 278.75 278.75
Transfers from retained earnings - - - 55.57 - (55.57) -
Transfers to retained earnings - - - - (44.93) 44.93 -
Reversal of ESOPs charges on cancellation - - - - - 0.46 0.46
Balance at March 31, 2023 8.18 3,112.08 5.94 408.37 22.91 1,379.51 4,937.00

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registpatign Number : 100515W

per Mayuresh V. Zele
Partner
Membership no: 150027

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 16, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

hilpa Gatthai
Director
DIN: 051247

Hitesh Bhadada

Chief Financial Officer

»

~

hanindranath Kakarla

Director

DIN: 02076676



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Statement of Cash flows
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 371.01 254.01
Adjustments for
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 10.56 34,67
Impairment of financial assets (189.48) (117.50)
Interest on debt securities (EIR adjustment) (215.21) (255.19)
Interest on borrowings other than debt securities (EIR adjustment) (222.42) (352.25)
Interest on subordinated liabilities (EIR adjustment) (205.42) (205.12)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments (49.47) -
Expense on Employee stock option scheme 2.80 6.69
Interest on lease liabilities 1.93 11.34
Loss / (Profit) on sale of Property, plant and equipment (0.25) 1.58
Operating cash flow before working capital changes (495.95) -621.76
Add / (Less): Adjustments for working capital changes
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade receivables (15.57) (7.17)
Decrease/(Increase) in stock in trade (127.84) 9.19
Decrease/(Increase) in Loans (net) 4,982.23 1,804.98
Decrease/(Increase) in Other financial assets (717.55) 764.22
Decrease/(Increase) in Investments 496.96 (583.07)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other non financial assets 45.80 (63.25)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables 0.87 (60.33)
Increase / (Decrease) in Non financial liabilities and provisions 379 91.23
Increase / (Decrease) in Other financial liability (183.67) (93.39)
Cash used in operations 3,989.06 1,240.65
Income taxes paid (net) (6.05) 12.44
Net cash used in operating activities -A 3,983.02 1,253.10
B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets (112.31) (0.75)
Decrease/(Increase) in Intangibles under development 92.94 (40.62)
Purchase of AiF investments (2,367.58) -
Sale of Property, plant and equipment (0.60) 0.63
Sale/Redemption of AIF investments 288.24 -
Dividend on investments - -
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities - B (2,099.31) (40.75)
C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of Share capital (including Securities Premium) - -
Increase / (Decrease) in Debt Securities' (1,872.58) (100.01)
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings other than Debt Securities' (1,073.12) (2,720.41)
Increase / (Decrease) in Subordinate Debt (0.00) 0.01
Repayment of lease obligations (9.62) (26.58)
Securitization liability 529.26 284.11
Interest on borrowings 643.06 812.56
Net cash generated from financing activities - C (1,783.01) (1,750.33)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 100.69 (537.98)
Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year 166.41 704.40
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year 267.13 166.41
Operational cash flows from interest
Interest paid 646.16 828.56
Interest received 1,023.93 1,624.01
Dividend received a g
CSR contribution to Edel Give Foundation 4.50 7.00
Notes:
1. Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transaction
2. For disclosure relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, refer note 37
As per our report of even date attached.
For G. D. Apte & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Edelwe‘z_iss Retail Finance Limited

L N P

Phanindranath Kakarla
Director Director
DIN: 05124763 DIN: 02076676

Partner
Membership No. 150027

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 16, 2023

Hitesh Bhadada
Chief Financial Officer




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

I

3.

Corporate Information:

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited ("ERFL’ or ‘the Company’) is a public limited company domiciled and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company was originally incorporated on February 18,
1997 as “Affiuent Dealcom Private Limited” which subsequently got converted to public limited on January 1, 2014 and
then the Company’s name changed to “Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited” with effect from January 6, 2014. The Company
is subsidiary of Edelcap Securities Limited. ERFL is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI} as a Systemically
Important Non Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company.

ERFL is primarily engaged in the business of providing loan against property, business loans, loan to real estate developers
and rural finance loans.

Basis of preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {(as amended from time to time}.

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments such as,
derivative financial instraments, and other financial instruments held for trading, which have been measured at fair value.
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest million, except
when otherwise indicated.

2.1 Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division III of the Schedule IIT
to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date
(current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current) is presented in “Note 44 - Maturity Analysis
of assets and liabilities™.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and
reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all the following
circumstances:

»  The normal course of business
s The event of default
e The event of insolvency or bankniptey of the Company and or its counterparties

Significant accounting policies
3.1 Recognition of Interest income and Dividend income
3.1.1  Effective Interest Rate (EIR):

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate {EIR) method for all financial
instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate a shorter period to the gross carrying
amount of financial instrument.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the
best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of
potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle
including prepayments penalty interest and charges.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the
adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance
sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

3.1.2 Interest Income:

The company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage IIT°, the Company
caleulates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected credit loss) of the
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Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
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financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to
calculating interest income on gross basis.

Penal interest income on delayed EMI/ pre EMI is recognised on receipt basis.

Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income includes fee other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The Company
recognises the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the relevant contracts /

agreements and basis the probability of consideration collection.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established on the
reporting date.

Other Income
Other Income represents income earned from activities incidental to the business and is recognised when

the right to receive income is established as per the terms of the contract. Other ancillary charges are
recognized on realisation.

3.2 Financial Instruments:

3.21

3.2.2

3.2.3

Date of recognition:

Financial assets and liabilities except for loans and borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date,
i.e. the date when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the insttument. This includes
regular ways of trade: purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. Loans are recognised when
funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The Company recognises borrowing when funds are
available for utilisation to the Company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilitics (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
vatue through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Classification and Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and
the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

e  Amortised cost
¢ Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI)
e Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]

The Company measures debt financial assets at amortised cost basis the following conditions: that meet
the following conditions at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount ocutstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition):

¢ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.
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By default, all other financial assets are subsequenily measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of financial assets is recognised in profit and loss
account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCT if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. The

Company measures all financial ussets classilied as FVTPL at faiy value al each reporting date. The change
in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

3.3 Financial Assets and Liabilities:

e 334

332

333
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Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased primarily for
short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that
are managed together, for which evidence of recent pattern of short-term profit is taking. Held-for-trading
assets are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised
in net gain on fair value changes.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amortised cost at each reporting date.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premiwm on issue funds, and costs that
are an integral part of the EIR.

Financial Guarantee:

Financial guarantees are contract that requires the Company to make specified payments to reimburse the
helder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate are initially
measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee or the
comnitment. Subsequently they are measured at higher of this amortised amount and the amount of loss
allowance.

Loan Commitments;
Undrawn loan commitments are commitiments under which, the Company is required to provide a loan

with pre-specitied terms to the customer over the duration of the commitment. Undrawn [oan commitments
are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

3.4 Reclassification of Financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes off, or terminates a business line. The Company
has not reclassified any of its financial assets or liabilities in current year and previous year. -

3.5 Derecognition of financial instruments:




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

331

3.35.2

Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the financial asset have
expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both, transferred the financial asset
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

= The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

o It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party under pass
through arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'originzl asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those
cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients’), when all of the following conditions are met:

e The Company has no obligation to pay amount to the eventual recipients unless it has collected
equivalent amount from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full
recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

s The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients.

The Company has to remit any cash flow it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material
delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash
or cash equivalents including interest eamed, during the period between the collection date and the date
of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

¢ The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to
sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and
without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated
to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the difference recognised as a
derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment foss has not already been recorded.

If the modification does not resuit in cash flows that are substantiaily different, the modification does not
result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company
records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Derecognition of financial labilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial fiability is replaced by another from the samne lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derccognition of the original Hability and the recognition of a new liability,
The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid,
including modified contractual cash flow recognised as new financial Hability, is recognised in statement
of profit or loss.

3.6 Impairment of financial assets:

The Company records provisions based on expected credit loss model (“ECL”).on-a
not measured at FVTPL , undrawn loan commitment and financial guarante / r@tﬁé"@g
as “Financial instrument”. Equity instruments are not subject to impairmeny, @ Y

loans, other financial assets
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ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the cash flows that
are due o an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash. flows that the entity expects to receive discounted
at the original effective interest rate. As ECL considers the amount and timing of payments, a credit loss arises even
if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when contractually due.

Simplified Approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The
Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However,
if receivables contain a significant financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure
the loss allowance by applying general approach to measure ECL.

General Approach

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk {(SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition inslead of an evidence of a [inanciat asset being credil-impaired at the reporting date or an aclual
default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible defanit events over the expected
life of & financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD)
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the
exposure at defauit (EAD), for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date; for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn
down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by
default date determined based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-tooking information.

Company categories its financial assets as follows:

Stage I Assets:

Stage I assets include financial instruments that did not have a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recoguition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL (resulting from default
events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage IT Assets:

Stage II Assets include financial instruments that have a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are
recognised.

Stage TIT Assets:
Stage III Assets are considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans. The
method is similar to that for Stage I assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

The expected credit loss on the uncancellable loan commitment is recognised together with the loss allowance for
the financial asset.

The Company’s product offering includes working capital facilities with a right to Company to cancel and/or reduce
the facilities with one day’s notice. The Company does not limit its exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice
period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Company’s expectations of the customer behaviour,
its likelihood of default and the Company’s future risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or
cancelling the facilities. BT ;‘*’»,
—-—.f\f.;- \
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3.7 Collateral Valuation:
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3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks 10 use collateral, where possible. The collateral
comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit /guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories,
other non-financizl assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not
recorded on the Company’s balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECL. It is
generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodic basis. However, some collateral, for
example, securities relating to margin requirements, is assessed on a daily basis.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral. Other
financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value are vatued using models.

Collateral Repossessed:

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal operations or
should it be sold. Assets detesmined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to their relevant asset
category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which
selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held for sale at their fair value (if financial assets)
and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at the repossession date ,in line with the Company’s policy.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets in its retail
portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus
funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, the residential properties under legal
repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet.

Write-Offs:

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no reasonable
expectation of recovery besides technical write off as per relevant policy.

Forborne and modified loan:

The Company sometimes make concessions or modifications to the original tenms of loans as a response to the
borrower’s financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to otherwise enforce collection of collateral. The
Company considers a loan forborne when such concessions or modifications are provided as a result of the
borrower’s present or expected financial difficulties and the Company would not have agreed to them if the borrower
had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties include defaults on covenants, significant concerns
raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance may involve extending the payment arrangements and the
agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment measured using the
original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms. It is the Company’s policy to monitor forborne loans to
help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to occur, Derecognition decisions and classification between
Stage H and Stage 111 are determined on a case-by-case basis. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan,
it is disclosed and managed as an impaired Stage 111 forborne asset, until it is collected or written off.

Determination of Fair Value:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the Hability takes place either;

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use, when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their cconomic best interest, A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation fechniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments
are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 Financial Instruments:

s Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets

or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active
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only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 Financial Instruments:
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived directly or indirectly from
observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s kife.

Level 3 Financial Instruments:

Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recarring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The
Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations,

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected net
exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the eredit risk of the
individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrament-by-instrument basis and reclassifies
instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Leases:
Company as a lessee:
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The
Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all Ieases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to inake lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of Use Assets:

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease Habilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
aver the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease labilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease Habilities is increased
{o reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments)
or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term lease
The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of property
that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Conpany recognises lease payment associated with these leases as an

expense on a siraight line basis over lease term.

Company as lessor:

et .
rative period. As a lessor the

The Company’s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from_,.th’éx
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Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lg:/éféq-1s'”'clas§iﬁé:a‘%§ a finance lease if it
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transfers substantially al] the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset and classified as an
operafing lease if it does not.

3.13 Earnings Per Share;

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax atiributable to the equity sharehoiders for
the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year,

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity
shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit
after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued
upor conversion of all potential equity shares.

3.14 Retirement and other employee benefit:

3.14.1

3142

3.14.3

3.14.4

Provident fund and National Pension Scheme:

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a defined
contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an acerual basis and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity:

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the
gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prier periods, that benefit is discounted to determine
its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of the
obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,
Compensated Absences:

The cligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual
leave entiilement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge in the
statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement
based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits is deteriined
using the projected unit credit method.

Equity-seftled share-based payments and Stock Appreciation Righis (SARs):

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are granted by the ultimate parent Company. These are
measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. These includes Stock
Appreciation Rights (SARs) where the right to receive the difference between the SAR price and the
market price of equity shares of the ultimate parent Company on the date of exercise, either by way of
cash or issuance of equity shares of the ultimate parent Company, is at the discretion of the ultimate parent
Company. These are classified as equity settled share based transaction.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the 'ESOP reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in
instalments over the vesting period, the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each
instalment has a different vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.
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3.15 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

3.16

3.17

3.18

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated
depreciation and accurnulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by
changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount thereof
when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above. Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than frechold land and properties under
construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis
from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold,
depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule 1F of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful lives of
the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule I for calculating the depreciation.
The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Fumiture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computers - Servers and networks 6 years
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amottised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the
period of lease whichever is earlier.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those components which have been
separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an #tem of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Intangibles such as software arc amortised over a period of 3
years based on its estimated useful life.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired
based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset
belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction
is treated as an impairment [oss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there
is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed
and the assets is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Provisions and other contingent Habilities:

Provistons are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using a Wﬁp{e-tax discount rate that reflects

SFIALE; hggsgxs specific to the liability.
'\
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3.19

3.20

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company. Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources
in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent labilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income
that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not
a contingent asset and is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise of cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less.

Income tax expenses:
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
3.20.1 Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible, The Company’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

3.20.2 Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.20.3 Current and Deferred tax for the year:
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

4.  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
incomes and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information
about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most

significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone

4.1

nancial statements are included are given below:
s,

ey

Business model assessment:
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4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how the financial assets are managed together
to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The
Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to
understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for
which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model
for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there
has been a change in business meodel and so a prospective change to the classification of those instruments.

Significant increase in credit risk:

As explained in note 49.1, ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for Stage I assets, or lifetime
ECL for Stage 11 or Stage 111 assets. An asset moves to Stage I when its credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. Ind AS 109 does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company takes into account qualitative and
quarititative reasonable and supportable forward-fooking information, Refer to note 49.1 for more details.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that
are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The Fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Judgements and estimates include consideration of liquidity
and model inputs related to items such as credit risk, funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Methad:

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 3.1.1, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of
return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given
/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of
the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life cycle of the
instrument, as well expected changes India’s base rate and other fee income, expenses that are integral part of the
instrument

Impairment of Financial assets:

The impairment provisions for the financial assets except assets valued at fair value through Profit & Loss account
(FVTPL) are based on assumptions about estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows, collateral values,
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk, probability of default (PD) and Loss given default (LGD) rates.
The Company uses judgements in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs for impairment calculations
based on its past history, existing market conditions and forward looking estimates at the end of each period. These
estimates are driven by number of factors, change in which can result in different fevel of allowance.

The Company’s expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are output of complex model with number of underlying
asswmptions regarding choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are
considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

¢ The Company’s internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual grades based on ageing.

e The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for
financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment.
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o Development of ECL medels, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs Determination of
associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment levels and
collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs.

e Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic
inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual Joss experience and adjust
when necessary.

4.7 Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exist, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is higher of
an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and is value in use. Where the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

4.8 Provisiens and contingent liabilities:

The Comparny operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation
risk inherent to its operations. Asaresult, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations
and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and
considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the probability of
outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is
disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into
account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar
incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

4.9 Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on whether
tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve complex issues,
which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances,

5. Leases:

Significant judgements are involved in evaluating if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind
AS 116. The Company also uses significant judgement in assessing the applicable discount rate which is an equivalent to
incremental borrowing rate estimated on best effort basis.

6. Recent Accounting Pronouncement:

Ministry of Corporate affairs have made changes on March 31, 2023, in the following Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) amended namely Ind AS 101, Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115, Ind AS 1, Ind AS 8,
Ind AS 12 and Ind AS 34. These amendments shall be applicable from annual reporting pericds beginning on or after
April 01, 2023,

7. A Scheme of Amalgamation for merger (Merger by Absorption) of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited ("ERFL") with the
Company ("Transferee Company™) and their respective shareholders under section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made there under has been filed with the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"} on March 26,
2019, Further, on March 25, 2019, the Company had applied for approval from the Reserve Bank of India in relation to
the said merger, which was approved by the RBI on September 27, 2019. The Company is in process to obtain NOCs from
all the lending banks.




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Nates 1o the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Cantinued)
(Curreney - Indian rupces in millions)

8§ Cush and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

- in current accounts 267.13 166.41
- in fixed deposits with original maturity less than three montls - -
- Accrued interest on fixed deposits - -
267.13 166.41
9 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits with original maturity more than three months and less than 12 months 57.36 117.56
Fixed deposits with original maturily more than 12 months 22.01 22.01
§19.37 139.57
9.1, Encumbrances on fixed deposits with bank held by the Campany
Given as credit enhancernents towards securitisation 106.97 2206
Given as colluteral against Bank overdraft - 15.54
10 Sceurities held for trading As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
At fair value through profit and less account Facevalue  Quantify Amount Fage value Quantity Amount
Debt Securities
9.65% ECL Finance Limited 06.08.2023 Bonds 1,000 14,936 16.51 1,000 14,936 16.48
0.00% ECL Finance Limited 04.04.2022 Bonds - - - 1,060 7,209 9.75
10.00% Edelweiss Housing Finance Limired 19.07.2026 NCD 1,000 1,798 1.98 1,000 7468 8.03
10,20% ECL Finance Limited 04.04,2022 Bonds - - - 1,000 3,829 4.01
0.00% ECL Finance Limited 06.08.2023 Bonds 1,000 3,834 5.86 1,000 3834 4.54
10.20% ECY, Finance Limited 23.08.2622 Bonds - - - 1,000 1,951 2.27
0.00% ECL, Finance {.imited 23,08.2022 Bonds - - - 1,000 1,762 2.29
10.402% ECL Finance Limited 04.01.2024 Bonds 1,000 T2 0.80 1,000 ™" 0.79
0.00% ECL Finance Limited 04.61.2024 Bonds 1,000 218 0.33 1,000 218 0.29
0.00% ECL Finznce Limited 23,65,2024 Bonds 1,000 3 0.00 1,000 3 0.0¢
16.60% ECE Finance Limited 04.01.2029 Bonds 1,000 1 0,00 1,000 L 0.00
9.25% ECL Finance Limited 06-Aug-2023 Bonds 1,000 1,853 1.79 1,000 1,853 1.83
10.18% Edel Firance Company Limited 27-Apr-2027 Bonds 10,060,000 140 150.85 - - -
Total Debt securities 178.13 50,20
Naote: Please refer note 50.1 Fair Value measurement for valuation methodelogies for securitics held for trading.
11 Trade receivables As at Asat

Trade receivables (Unsecured)
Receivables considered good - non-related party
Receivables considered good - related party - (Refer note 46)
Receivables which have sipnificant increase in credit risk

Less : Allowance for expected credit losses

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

12.31 027
23.45 19.72

0.65 0.14
36,41 20,13
{1.19) {0.49)

35.21 19.64




11¢)

Reconeiliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables:

Impairment allowance measured as per simplificd approach

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

Far the year ended
March 31, 2022

Impairment allowance - Opening Balance (0.4%) (0.84)

{Addyf Less: Change due to receivable balance/bucketig (net) {070} 035
Impairment allowance - Closing Belance (1.19) (0.49)
Nate: For disclosure relating to trade recsivable ageing/ provision matrix, refer note 51
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule
As at Mareh 31, 2023

Qutstanding for March 31, 2023 *
Particulars Lessthan 6 6 Months - 1-2 Years  2-3 years More than 3 Total
Months 1 Year YEars
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 3569 0.06 - - - 35.75
(if} Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ which Have significant
increase in eredit risk - - - 0.65 - 0.65
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trads Receivables- considered good - - - - - -
{+} Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase
in eredis risk - - - - - -
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables -~ credit impaired - - - - - -
Receivable (A) 35.69 0.06 - 0.65 - 36.41
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 0.50 0.04 - - - .54
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which Bave significant
increase in credit risk - - - 0.65 - 0.65
(iii) Undisputed Trade Reeeivables —~ credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered goad - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Reccivables — which have significant increase
in credit risk - - - - . -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables —~ credit impaired - - - - - .
ECL Provision an receivables (B) 0.50 0.04 - 0.65 - 1.19
Receivables net of provision = {A)-(B) 35,19 0.02 - - - 35.21
As at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for March 31, 20227
Particulars Lessthan 6 6 Momths -1 1-2 Years 2-3 years Mere than 3 Tetl
Months Year years

{i} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 19.57 0.02 - - - 19.99
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which bave significant
increase in credit risk - - - .34 « 0.14
(iti) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv} Disputed Trade Receivables— considered goed - - - - - -
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase
i credit risk . - - - - -
(vi} Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
Receivable (A) 15.97 0.02 - 0.14 - 20.13
(i) Undisputed Trade receivablcs — considered good 634 0.01 - - - 0.35
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which Eave significant
increase in eredit risk - - - 0.14 - b.14
(iii} Undisputed Trade Reccivables - eredit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables~ considered good - - - - - -
(v} Lispiited lrade Recevables — which have significant inerease
in credit risk - - - - - -
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
ECL Provisics on receivables (B) 0.34 0.01 - 0.14 - 2.4
Receivables net of provision = (A)-(B) 19.63 0.02 - (0.00} - 1,64

” Unbilled amount due ol March 2023 is Nit (March 2022 Nil).




Edehweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statcments for vear ended March 3, 2023 (Conrined)
(Currency : Indian rupees in milliens)

iz

Loans (At amortised Cast)

A, Term Loans

(i) Renail leans

{il) Wholcsale loans

Total (A) - Gross

Less: Allowance for cxpected credit loss

{including on loan commitment)
Totak (A) -~ Net

B. Term Loans

(i) Secured by tangible asscts {refer note 49.1.2)

(ii) Unseeured

Total (B} - Gross

Less: Allowarice for expected credit loss
(including on loan commitment}

Total {B} - Net

C, Term Loans

C.1 Loans in India

{i) Public Sectors

(ii) Others

Total (C.I) - Gross

Less: Aflowance for expected credit Joss
{including on loan commitment)

Total {C.I) » Net

“C.II Loans oi.ltside India

Less: Allowance for expected credit joss
(inc]uding_nn {oan commitment)

Total (C.II) - Net

Total: (C.1 and C.H)

Asat As at

March 34, 2023 March 31, 2022
3,786.86 4,996.09
1,861.18 5723.13
5,648.05 10,719.22
(204,38) (482,79}
5,443.67 10.236.43
3,160.67 6,628.04
2.487.38 4,691.18
5,648.05 10,719.22
(204.38) (482.79)
5.443.67 10,236.43
5,648.05 10,719.22
5,648.08 10,719,22
(204.38) (482.79)
5,443.67 10,236.43
5.443.67 10.236.43

Loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters. directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Cempanies Act, 20133,
either severally or jointly with any other persen that are!

(a) repayable on demand or

(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

Type of Borrower

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Amount of LeanfAdvance in

% to the total loan and

Amount of Loan/Advance in

% to the total loan

the nature of Loan|advance in the naturefthe  nalure  of  Leanjand advance in the
. ouistanding of foans outstanding nature of loans
Promater - - - -
Directors - - - -
KiMP's - - - -
Related Partics - - - -
Total - 0% 0%




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 ¢Continned}
{Currency : Indian rupees in miltions}

12.2. Credit Quality of Assets
The fable below shows the eredit quality and the maximum exposire to credit risk based on year-crd stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of
impairment allowances. Details of the Compuny's internal grading system are explained in Note 49,1 and policies on ECL allowances are set out in Note 3.6,

Refer note 49.1.3 for modificd and forbome loans.

{a) Grass carrying amount of foan assets allocated to Stage I, Stage IF and Stage INT

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Stagel Stage 11 Stage 111 Total Stage 1 Stage Il Stage HI Total
Loans (at amortised cost)
Performing

Highs grade 4,502.00 - - 4,502.00 7,469,23 - - 7,469.23

Standard grade - 987,59 - 987.5% - 3,001.94 - 3,001.94
Naa-performing

Impaized - - 158.46 158.46 - - 248.05 248.05
TFotal 4,502,08 987.59 158.46 5,648.08 7469.23 3,001.94 248.05 10,719.22

(b} Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL in relation fo loan assets is as follows:
Non-credit impaired Credit impaired “Total
Stage I Stage Ii Stage IH
Gross Altowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Altowance
Particulars carvying for carrying for carrying for carrylng for
anluint ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL

For the vear ended March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 7,469.23 AL22 3,001.94 389.6% 248.05 £2.81 18,719.22 482,64
‘Transfers:

Transfers 1o 12 Momb ECL (Stage 1) 19.58 2,15 {5.42) (G.72} (14.53) {1.43) - -

Transfers 1o lifetime ECL (Stage 2) {293.74) 2.51) 308.28 4.35 (14.54) {1.83) - -

Transfers to lifetime ECL - Credit (47.05) (0.27) (251.96) {23.81} 295.02 24.07 -

impaired (Stage 3)
Remeasurement of ECL arising from (1.78) 2114 19.32 38.68
transfer of stage (net)
Net new and finther lendingf (repayiments} (2,624.88) 46.65 {2.044.72) (294,59) 491,02 37.06 (3.978.58) 21119
Amounts wrirten off (21.53) 2.37) (20.52) {9.39) (183D (8.09) (60.35) (19.80)
Loun sold 10 Asset Recontruetion - - - - (1.032.23) {86.28)  (1.032.23) (86.28)
Company Trust and AlF
Clusing Balance 4,502.00 §2.08 947.59 86,29 158,46 35,68 5.048.05 244,05
For the vear ended March 31, 2022
Opeaing Balance 1,686.17 94.41 3,30:.29 2474 1,561.17 279.81 12,548.63 621.53
Transfers:

Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1) 1,212.8% 115.10 {814.61) {57.25) (398.24} (57.45) - -

Transfers to fifelime ECL (Siage 2) {333.88) {3.00) T.81 83.89 (439.03} (80.90) - -

Transfers to lifetirne ECL- Credit {179.69) (1.82) (24.97) (4.31) 204.65 6.13 - -

impairgd (Stage 3)
Remeasurement of ECL arising frem (86.08) 59.16 24,02 {2.90)
wransfer of stage (net)
Net aew and funher lending/ (repayments) {8a7.57) (72.68) (207.83) 74,99 (224.03) (5818 (1,29945) (55.87)
Amounts written off’ {48.64) (5.71) {24.85) (14.19) {6.01) {3.25) (79.503 (23.15)
Loan sold to Asset Recontruction - - - - {450.40) {56.97) {450.46) (56.97)
Company Trust and AIF
Closing Balunce 7.469.23 40.22 3.001.94 389.61 248.05 52 .81 16.719.22 482.64
Notes:

t. Contractual outstanding amount is written off.

2, Changes in loss allowance is due to change in portfolic composition and movement in loan outstanding as the year end.

3. The Cotnpany had initiated sale of certain credit impaired financial assets before March 31, 2023 and for which definitive contracts were executed post the
balance sheet date. These financial assets seld after March 31, 2023, amounted to Rs, 25.61 crores (net of provisions) te asset reconstruction companics trusts
(ARC Trust). Accordingly, on account of subsequent sale to and recovery from ARC Trusts of such cradit impaired assets, management has recorded such
financia} assets as recoverable and not as credit impaired financial assets. As at 315t March, 2023, we have incurred 2 loss of amounting to Rs.6.40 crares and
recorded i firancial statement.




Edelvvelss Retail Finance Limited

Noies to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Coutinesd)

(Currency : Indian rupces in miflions)

12.3. Credit Quality of exposare {L.oan Commitment)

{a) Gross carrying amount of loan commitment allocated to Stage I, Stage 1 and Stage 111

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Stage I Stape I Stage 111 Totsl Stage | Stage II Stage I1I Total
Loans (at amortised cost)
Performing

High grade 116.00 - - 116.00 55.55 - - 55.55

Standard grade - - - - - - - -

Substzndard grade - - - - - - - -
Non-performing

Impaired - . 0.04 0.04 - B 0.04 6.04
Total 116,08 - 0,04 116.04 55,55 - 0.04 55.59

(1) Reconcilintion of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL in relation to of Joan commitment is as follaws:
Non-credit impaired Credit impaired Tolal
Stage 1 Stage II Stage 111
Particulars Gross Allowance Gross Allowarce Grass Allowance Gross Allowance
earrying for carrying for carrying {or carrying for
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL

For the Year Ended Mareh 31, 2023
Opening Balance 55,55 0.14 - - 0.04 - 55.59 0.14
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1} - - - “ - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL {Stage 2) - - - - - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL - Credit {5.38) - - - 5.38 - - -
impaired (Stape 3)
Remeasurement of ECL arising from - - - - - - -
transfer of stage (net)
Nel new sanctions and (disbursement} 65.83 (.34 - - (5.38) 0.04 .45 0.i8
Closing Balance F16.00 0.28 - - 0.04 0.04 116.04 0.32
For the Year Ended March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 17.00 049 42,38 2.70 - - 39.38 119
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1) 3489 - (34.89) - - - - -
Transfers te lifetitne ECL ($1age 2) {0.54) - 0.54 B - - - -
Transfers te lifetime ECL. Credit impaired - - - - - - R
{Btage 3)
Remeasurernent of ECL arising from - - - -
ransfer of siage (net)
Net new sanctions and (disbursement} 420 {0.35) {3.03) (2,70} 0.64 - (3.79) (3.05)
Closing Balance 55.55 0.14 - - 0.04 - 55.59 0.14
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13

Investments
As at March 31, 2023 At fuir vahie
Desipaated at
Subtotal Total
) At Amortised cost {1)] Through Through Fair value At cost (5)
Particut = (2434 )= {14546
artieutars oci@ | P&L @) |through Prege]s - 2 (N={1+546)
or toss (4)
Security receipts - - 783.61 - 783.61 - 783.61
Units of AF - - 233079 - 233179 - 233179
Total - Gross (A} - - 3,115.4 - 3,115.40 - 3,115.49
(i) Investments outside India - - - - - - -
(if) Investment in India - - 3,115.40 - 3,115.40 - 3,115.40
Tatal (B) - - 3,115.40 - 3,115.40 - 3,115.40
Less: Aflowance for impairment (C) - - - - - - -
Total Net (A-C) - - 3,115.40 - 3,115.40 - 3,115.40
As at March 31. 2022 Athirvampe | [T T -
Pesignaid al
. . Subtotal [otal
k B t cas -
Particulars . ] At Amortised cost (1) | Through GCH| Tlwough P&L|  Esir vilue 5 (2304 At cast {6) (T (14546)
. ()] N through Prefit
or loss (4} ‘4
Security receipts - - 1,240 22 - 1,240,22 [ - La45.c2
Units of AIF - - 300.76 - 00.76 [ T30 76
Tetal - Gross (A} T A ~.390.54 B I T i
| !
(2} Investments outside India - - - - - | . -
(ii} Investment in India - - 1,540,98 - 1,540.93 - 1,340,948
Toal {B) - - 1.380.0% - 1.540.98 - 1.540.98
Less: Allowanee lor timpaitmznt (C) - - - -~ - - -
Total Net (A-C) - - 1,540.98 - 1,540.98 - __1.540.98
Note:

Eruring the quarter and the year ended Marely 31 2023, the Company had scid certain Droncial assets amouating to Nil 1nd Rs.38,61 crores (net of provis'ans)
respectively, to assel reccastructions company wusts (*ARC Trusts") and acquired seeurity -=ceipts {SF3} ameunting to Nil and Rs 62,22 crores respectiscly frou
these ARC Trusis. Ind AS 199 — “Financial Instrumients’, prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 201 5, requires substentia'ly all risks and rev-urds ‘o
be transferred for the purpose of de-recognilion of such financial assets fom the Company's financial result. ECSL, the holding Company had undertaken
substantizlly all risks and rewards in respect of such Fnancial assets, As a result. these financial assets were de-recognized in the Company's financial result.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, ERFL has received confimation that binding bids received by asscts reconstruction companies (‘ARCs” of *trusts”) &
Alicrmative Investment Fund (AIF) abowt tiansfer of underlying financial assets for which setlement were executed post the balance shieet date but before approval
of financial resulis by the Board of Direciors, accordingly, we have recorded receivabiz against these transfer of Investment was Rs. 543.79 millions, s per Tnd A%
10, Events after the reporting period, which.require shat, event that provide evidence of condition existed at the end of reporting pericd, and =s ver Ind 169-
Financial Instruments, which require that, financial instruments be classified and measurcd based on their econemic substance, vather than their legal form in
achieving a more accurate representation of a company's financial position and risk exposure related to financial instruments, accordingly, on account subsequent
receipt of payment from ARC Trusts and AIF , management has recorded as recoverable from trusts and AIFs and derccognised the financial assets,

Alternative Investment Fund: The Company made investiment in AlF, in the view of Ind AS 109 and accounting policy of the company from derecognition aspect,
considered some imporiant points as below mentiened:

+  Company has transferred some of these loan assets directly ta the AIF where there are other assels were also lying in the funds, also there are customers who
paid 1o Company and in-lum Company invesled in AIF.

*  AlF also has ather investor whe held some pereentage holding in AIF.

*  AIF has right to 2ppoint investiment manager. Investment mianager contre? and rake decision to manage the assets.

+  The instrument in which the company invested in AIF is different than the previous holding as lozn assets,

*  AIF evaluare ol the underlying assets of the find and 1hen declare NAV per unit.

+ There are other investors whao are holding some percentage in AIF while company holds below 50%.

+ These instrument as classified as level 3 instrument as FYTPL and any fair value gain or loss recognised in Profit and Loss account,

Considering abeve mentioned facts, the Company has net retained any control where company has practical ability to see the assels in entirety although some risk
and rewards are not iransferred. Such Derecopnition of assets from the books of the Company, is in line with Ind AS 109, Also, looking the fors tha AIF hos oiber
assets in the fund and NAV of the unils is declared considering all the assets under management ef such fund, Hence Company is aot holding all the risk and
sewards of the transferred ussets rather it is distributed in the percentage of holding and Company is holding below 50% of the pool of assets insicad of majority
helding in particular assets. Accordingly, the Company in the view that & is apprupriantely derecogmnised from the books of the Company.




13.1 Investinents Details

As at Mzrch 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Face Valoe/ Face Value/
NAY Quantity Amount NAV Quantity Amount
Security receipts
EARC Trust SC 373 186.69 2,25,250 42.05 432,16 2,25250 97.34
EARC Trust SC 385 628,95 1,79,783 113.07 653,96 2,76,590 180.88
EARC Trust SC 416 981.50 98,842 97.01 989.33 1,52,065.00 150,44
Omkara PS 94 Trust 974.93 236,216 230.30 978.5¢ 2,75,506 269.58
Ombkara PS34/2021-22 1000.00 54,839 54,85 1,000.00 63,920.00 53.92
EARC Trust SC - 378 454.67 21,780 10.36 564.29 22,780.00 11.49
EARC Trust SC 374 481.36 53,106 39.38 12774 63,106.00 45.93
EARC Trust SC417 864.41 2,37,851 205.61 B77.72| 3,65925.00 32118
CFMARC Trust- 94 G40 - 0.00{ 1,0600.00 99,450.00 99.45
763.64 [ 124022 |
Units of AIF
Real Estate Credit Oppoertunities Fund 11 - - - 9917.09 22,400 22214
LICHFL Housing & Infrastuesure Fund 10551 $3,40,277 14274 100.00 7.86,180 78.62
EDELWEISS VALUE AND GROWTH FUND 1,12,574.91 3,257 382.95 B - -
Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund 1,05,753,25 1,265 247.8] - - -
Alterative Invesument FUND {AIF) 6,410.16 2,43,091 1,558.24 - - -
2,331.75 3060.76
3,115.38 ) 1,540.98

i bian




Edeiweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statentents for year ended March 31, 2023 (Coatinned)
(Currency : Indian rupecs in millions)

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 DMarch 31, 2022
14 Other financtal assets
{unsecured, considered gond)

Security Deposits 13.95 13.96
Advances to others 418.1¢ 2393
Reccivable from Trust 393.54 -
Deposits- others 0.09 0.10
Margin placed with broker 0.51 0,97
826.19 38.96

E5  Current tax assets (ned)

Advance income taxes .53 $3.96
(et of provision for tax Rs, 200,18 million, previous year Rs. 86.23
milHien)

72.53 53.90

16 Deferred tax assets (net)

Beferred tax assets

Leans
Provision for expected credit Joss 5143 121.51
Unamoertised processing fees - EIR on lending 3.20 6.0¢
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation 5.04 10,03
Emmlovee benefit ablipstions
Provision for compensated zbsences .56 Q.64
Phisallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 2.2% 0,01
Lease libility 6.45 4.06
Others .07 8.67
83.94 150.92
Dreferred tax linbilities
Investments and other financig] instruments
Unamortised loan otigination costs - EIR on lending 4.55 3377
Recognition of Interest Strip on assignment deals 25.57 13.44
Accrued Interest on Stage 3 receivables - -
Borrowinns
Effective interest rate on financial labililies 10.38 11.37
Right-of-use Asset (ROU} 6.02 3.28
46.50 33.86
36.54 $17.06

Note: For disclesure relating to moverment in deforred tax assets / labilities, refer note 39,3,




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continned)
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17 Property, Plant znd Equipment

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment | Net Block
Description of Asses A;;::naat], (:::lnug] e d?sirsifa;s:::z i\::l‘::l A;::ilautl, gal;irngee dli)l::'sll!:;s::: Mal:vs:!:l;l, Al
2023 year year 31,2023 2022 year year 2023 ’

Froperty, Plant and Equipment

Land* 0.37 - - 037 - - - - .37
Leascheld improvements 389 ~ 0.186 373 3.25 45 G.16 3.54 0.19
Furniture and Fixtures 240 - 0.41 1.99 1.63 0.19 0.31 1.5% 0.48
Office cquipment 4,74 914 0.81 4,07 4,15 2.26 .76 3.65 0.42
Compuiers i7.i2 -0.14 .61 13.37 15.04 Q.63 3.41 12.26 L
Right-cfuse Asset (ROU) 159.59 19.53 0.46 138.60 106.54 8.20 - £14.74 23.92
Total 148.11 19.53 5.45 162.19 130.61 9.73 4.64 135.70 26.49

I8 Intangible Assets Under Development

(1) ¥ntangible Assets Under Development Ageing Schedute:-

Amount in Intangibfe Assets Under
Development for & period of March 31, 2023
Maore Total
1-2 Yearsi{ 2-3years | than3
i years
Project in progress -
~-|-Digilal Lending Plaiform (DLP) - - - - -
Total - - - - -

Intangible Assets Under
Development Less than
1 vear

(#) For Intangible Assets Under Development, whose cempletion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its eriginal plan, refer |
below schedatle:-

To be completed in

Entangible Assets Under Mare
Total

Development L:S‘s,ci]:n 1-2 Years| 2-3 years | than3

M Years

Bigital Lending Platform {DLP} - - - - -
Taotal - - B - -

19 Other Intangible Assets

Gross Block Accumulated Amortisalion and Impairment | Net Block
Deseription of Asscts Af at .’\dF]limnS DIS-[N]S:llS As at As. at Charge D:s_pusals Asat As at March
Aprildl, during the during the | BMarch | April 01, forthe during the | March 31, 11, 2023
2022 year year 31,2023 2022 year year 2023 ’
Other Intangible Assets
Saftware 1578 £12.3] - 128.09 15.01 0.82 - 15.82 112.26
Total 15.78 £12.3] - 128.09 15.01 0.82 - 15.83 112.26

Note:
* Charged against secured redeemable non-convertible debentures




Edelhweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financia) statetnents for year ended March 31, 2023 (Comtinured)
(Currency @ Indian rupees in millions)

17 Property, Plant and Equipment (Previous Year)

Gross Block Accumulated Deprecistion and Impairment Net Block
Deseription of Assels A[ﬁisl ;ll, 5:?-3:;?:: (E;:Ezexg: M::hﬂ; R ApArisl ?1, Chage far ﬁ:ﬂﬁi‘: Muf:ha; 1, Mnf;za;l,
2021 year year 2022 2021 the year year 2022 2022
Propesty, Plant and Equipment
Land* 0.37 - - 0.37 - - - - .37
Leaschold improvements 8.56 0,32 4,99 3.8% 577 1.55 4.07 3.25 0.64
Fumiture and Fixtures 4.08 0.02 1.70 2.40 2.36 0,40 1.13 1.63 .77
Vehicles - - - - . - . . -
Office equipment 71.55 0.11 292 4.74 6.19 0.53 257 4.15 0.39
Compulers 23.78 0.30 6.96 17.12 20.69 094 6.39 15,04 2.08
Right-of-use Asset {ROU) 180,67 37.34 98.42 119.59 78.52 28.62 - 106.54 13.05
Total 225.01 38.09 114.99 148.11 113.53 31.44 14.36 130.61 17.50

18  Intanyible Assets Under Development {Previous Y ear)

{i) Intangible Assets Under Development Ageing Schedule:-

Amount in [ntangible Assets Under Development for
Intangible Assets Under Development a period of March 31, 2022 Total

Less than 1 More than

1-2 Years { 2-3 years
year 3 years

Praject in progress
Digital Lending Platform (DLE)* 40.62 52.32 - - 92,94
Total 40.62 52.32 - - 92.94

(i) For Intangible Assets Under Develapment, whose completion is everdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plag, refer below  schedule:-

Ta be completed in
Intangible Assets Under Development Less than 1 More than Total
1-2 Years | 2-3 years
year 3 years
Digital Eending Platform {DLP) 125.00 - - - 125.400
Totzl 125.00 - - - 125.00

* The company is developing a Dightal Lending Platform (DLP) for automation of retail loan erigination process. The eriginal projected cost of the sofiware was
estinmted at Rs. 95.00 million with a variation of 10%. During the develapment phase, Co- Lending Model (CLM) module was identified as an additional module for
development, accordingly the project cost is revised and estimated to be Rs, 125 million. Further, timeline for completion of the project is also revised and expected
1o be compieted by FY 2623,

19 Otber Intangible Asscts (Previous Year)

Gross Block Aceurulated Amortisation and Impairment Net Block
Description of Assets .-‘-\]:\risl :(l)ti, é:li‘:;l‘::: ;?1:525::: M:::h“; 1, ApAr; ?:1, Charge for iﬁg;ﬁ: M:jha; I Ma}:hﬂ; i,
2021 year year 212 2021 the year year 2022 2022
Other Intangible Assets
Softwarg 15.78 - - 15.78 11.78 323 - 15.01 0.7
Total 15.78 - - 15,78 11.78 323 . 15.01 0.77

Nate:
*Charged against secured redecmable nen.convertible debentures




Edclweiss Retail Finance Limited

MNaotes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continxed)

(Currency : $ndion rupees in miflions)

Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
20 Other nen-financial asscts
Input tax credit (Goods and Services Tax) 98.58 110.7%
Prepaid expenses 11.68 2341
Advances to vendars 1,78 2375
Advances to employees 0,27 0.24
112.31 1581
21 Trade Payables
Trade payables te non-related parties 54.04 42.55
Trade payables 1o related parlies (Refer note 46} 3.23 11.51
57.27 54.06
Note:
(i) Total outstanding dues to ereditors other than micro 57.27 53.17
enterprises and smali enterprises
(ii} Total outstanding ducs of micre enterprises and smail enterprises - 0.89

Trade Payables includes Nill amount payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006. (Previous ¥Year Rs.0.89 million) Interest paid by the company during the year to “Suppliers”

"

registered under this Act is Nill (Previous year: Rs.0.06 million). The alorementioned is based on the responses received

by the company to its inguiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act.

21.1 Trade Payable Ageing =~

o Outstanding for March 31, 2023 *
Rarticulars Totat
Less than1|  1-2 23 ::1‘:;
Year Years years
years
{i) MSME - - - - -
{ii) Others 50.80 1.09 1.04 4.34 57.27
{ifi} Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total 50.80 1.0% 1.04 4.34 57.27
Trade Payable Ageing :-
Outstanding for March 31, 2022"
Particuf; 2 Total
o Less than 1 12 23 years ‘hMa:r;_
Year Years ’
years
(i) MSME 0.89 - - - 0.89
(ii) Others 47.83 1.22 132 1.3 53.17
(iii) Disputec dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total 48.72 1.22 2.72 1.3% 54.06
¥ Unbitled amount due of March 2023 is Rs.38.54 million {March 2022- Rs.31.18 millicn),
22 Debt securities (In Endia)
(At amenised cost) As at As at
March 31, 2423 March 31, 2022
Nen-converlible redeemable debentures (Secured}
Privately placed non-convertible debentures - 1,040.74
Publicly placed non-convertible debentures 889.88 1,763.69
889.88 2,804.43

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other terms, refer note 53




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year voded March 31, 2023 (Continved)
(Currency : indian rupees in millions)

Asal Asal
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

23 Borrowings other than debt securities (In Tndia)
(At amortised cost)

Term Loan (secured}
From Hanks - 1oL%9
From Finaceial Institution 266.3% 298.59

Nate: For disclosure relating to repaymment and other terms, refer note 52

166,39 1400.18
Bank overdraft {Secured) 355.76 374.11
Bapk overdrafl is in nature of committed Cash Credit lines repayable on demand (Interest
rate range, March-23 7.93% - 11.53% , March-22: 7.95% - 12.55%)

355.76 374.11
Loan & Advances From Edel Land Limited 0.17 -
Others 8328 -

705.60 1774.29

23(a) WHfal Defaulter
The company is not declared as a willul defaulter by any bank or financial Institution ar other Jender.

23(h) Compliance to the borrower’s terms & periedical filling of statements of current asscts
Company has bomowings from banks or financial institutions en the basis of security of current assets as mentioped in Note 23 above
(i) Company bas filed quarterly returns or statements of current nssets in limely manner 2n ate in ngreement with the books of uccounts
(i) There are no material diserepancies in quaterly returns or statements filled.

24 Subordinated ftabilitics {In India}
(Al amortised cosl}

Non-comvertible subordinuted debeniures 1,731.84 1694 .54
Non-cenvertible perpetual debentures 438.76 458.64

Note: Far disclosure relzting to repayinent znd other terms, refer note 54 8 §§

2,190.60 2153.18
25 (they financial linbilities

Securitisalion liability 813,50 284.11
Investor payable on assigned loans 24.18 164.04
Lease liabifities 25.62 16,12
Payable to employees 50.63 46.42
Book overdraft 4.61 41.11
Debenture application money received pending allotment 0.13 0.13
Other payable 103.26 122.04

1,021.92 673,97




Edehweiss Retail Finanre Limited
Notes to the financial stateenents for year ended March 31, 2023 (Consinned;

(Currency © Indian rupees in millions}

As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
It  Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for taxation 59,17 44,02
{net of advance tax Rs. $11.83 million, pravious year Rs, 528.31 million)

59.17 44.02
27 Provisiens
Provision for employes benefits (refer note 43)
{ratuity 2.09 8.71
Compensuted leave absences 2.23 2.53
Grhers 1.63 0.14
12,95 11.38
28 Other non-financiat liabilities
Revenue received in advance 011 0,06
Payable o others 7.70 8.16
Statutory ducs payable 33.53 31.78

41.34 40.00




Edehveiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes o the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued)

(Currzney : Inddian ropecs in millions)

29 Equity share capital
Authorised ¢

5,00,00,000 (Previous year: 5,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs, 10 each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
4,29,50,000 {Previous year: 4,29,50,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10, fully
paid-up

{a) Movemcnt in share eapital :

Quistanding at the beginning of the year
Shures issued during the year
Owstanding at the end of the year

(B) Terms/rights atiached to cquity shares &

Asat Asal

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
500.06 300,00

500,00 300.00

429.50 429.50

429,50 420,50
Asat As ot

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

No of shares  Amount

4,29,50,000 42050

No of shares  Amount

429.50,000 429,50

4,29,50,000 429.50

4,29,50000 42250

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10/, Each bolder of equity shares is entitled 10 onie vote per share
held. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitfed to receive remaining assets of the Company, after

distribution of ali preferential amounts,

(¢} Shares held by Promaters/holdingrultimate helding company andfor their subsidiaries

Edelesp Seeurities Limned (Helding company)**

Edelweiss Financial Services Limtted (Ultimate holding company)
Edelweiss Finvest Limitedi Amalgameted with Edel Finance Company
Limited) {Fellow subsidiary)

Exap Equities Limited{Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) {Fellow
subsidiary)y*

Asat
Masch 31, 2023
No of shares Ya

3,02,58,333 Th45%

30,60,000 6.98%

96,91,657  22.57%

Asai
March 31, 2022
No of shares "%

30058,33% T0.45%

30.00,00% 6.98%

$6,91,667 22.57%

42050000 100.00%

4,20.50.000  100.00%

*On June %, 2021 Edehweiss Finuncial Scrvices Limited has transferred 96,91,667 equity shares of the company to Edel Land Limited resulting 1o

change of sharcholding of the company.,

**Includes 6 Equity shares held by nominees of Edeleap Securities Limited.

{d) Thore are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment.




Edclhweiss Retail Finanee Liméted
Notes to the financial stalements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continned)

{Currency ' Indian nipees in millions)

30

(a)

LY

(G

)

{e}

4}

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Other Equity
Capital reserve 8.18 .18
Seeurities premium 3,112.08 3,112,08
Statutery reserve under section 45-1C 408,37 352,80
Debenture redemption reserve 22,91 67.84
Deemed capital contributicn - Equity 5.94 5.94
Retained earnings 1,379.52 [,110.96
4,937.00 4,657.79

MNote: For movement in Other Eguity, refer ‘Statement of ¢hanges in Equity’

. Nature and purpose of Reserves

Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents the gains of eapital nature which is not freely available for distribution,

Securities Premium
Securities premium is used o record the premium on issue of shares. Bafance in Securities premium can be utilised only for limited purposes sueh
as issuance of benus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Special Reserve under Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of Indis Act, 1934
Reserve created under section 45-1C of the Reserve Bark of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as
disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.

Dehbenture Redemption Reserve
The Company being an NBFC is required to create and maintain debenture redemption reserve (DRR) equivalent to 25% aof the pubiic issue of
debentures, as required by Companies Act, 2013. The amounts credited to the DRR may nat be utilised except on redemption of such debentures.

" On redemption of debentures, the amount may be transferred from debenture redemption zeserve to tetained carnings. However, as per the recent

amendment to the Companies Act 2013, NBFCs are no longer required 1o create and maintain DRR. Accordingly, the Company Lus not created
incremental DRR on cxisting public issuc of debentures, post the said amendment, though the Company continues to maintain the DRR creafed
carlicr till the maturity ef these debensurces.

Deemed capital contribution - Equity
This reserve relates 1o share options granted 10 eligible employees of the Company by the parent company under its employee share option plan,

Retained Earnings
Retained eamnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed eamnings afier taxes




Edeiweiss Retait Finance Limited

Notes to the financisl statements for year ended March 31, 2023 ¢Continned)

{Currency : Indisn rupees in millions)

31 {Intferest Enceme (at amortised cost)

3

3

3

2

3

-

Interest on Loans

Interest income on sceurities held for trading
Interest on depesits with bank

Other interest income

Other interest income on direct assignment

Fre and commission incame

Fee and commission income

Net gainfloss on fair value changes
On trading portfolio
Profit / (loss) on trading of securitics (FVTPL)

Prefit on salc of muatual fund units (FVYTPL)
Gain / (Joss) on Security Receipts / AJF

Other income

Other non operating income

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

1,262.46 1,502,290
15,19 6.17
6.29 10.79
o 0,00
67.24 4130
1,351.19 1.560.55
3140 15.72
3140 15.72
(9.26) 158.94
- 326
(86.34) -
O5.6m 162,20
10.22 3533
10.22 1533




Edelweiss Retail Finapve Limited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 {Continued)

(Curreney : Indian rupees in miliions)

35

34

37

Finance costs (at amortised cost)

Interest on bomrowings

Interest on debt securities

Interest on subordinated liabilitics

Other interest expense (including bank charges)
Interest on lease liabilities

Impairment on finaneial instruments

Loss on sale of loan assets sold 10 assets reconstruction company (trust)
Bad- debts and advances written off

Provision for expected credit less (at amontised cost}

(including on loan commitnients)

Employee benrcfit expenses

Salaries and wages

Centributien 1o provident and other funds
Gratuity expense {refer note 43)

Share based payments to employees
(Refer note below)

Staff welfare expenscs

Note:

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
218.77 352.25
215.21 235.19
205,42 205.12

6.52 341
193 11.34

647.56 $37.31
839.62 3589
7.81 (9.08)
{286.91) (14431)
{189.48) (117.50)
211.17 197,23
11.30 7.80
2,55 1.99
296
234

8.97 5.74
236.33 215.72

Bdelweiss Financlal Services Limited ("EFSL™) the ultimate holdmg Company has grunted an Employee steck option plan
{ESOP)/ Stock Appreciation Rights (ESAR) vption to acquire cquity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to
Company’s employees. Based on group policy / amangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options /rights ,
Company has accepted such cross charge and recogmised the same under the employee cost.




Edelweiss Retoil Finance Limited
Netes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continted)
(Currency : Indian rupecs in millions)

38

382

Other expenses

Advenisement and business promotion
Commission and brokerage
Communication

Directors’ sitting fees

Tegal and professicnal fees

Printing and slationery

Rent, Rates and 1axes (net of recovery}
Repairs and maintenance

Computer expenses

Corporate social responsibility (refer note 4.5)
Rating suppors fees

Office expenses

Postage and courier

Goods & Scrvice tax expenses

Stamp duty

Auditors’ remuneration (refer note 38.1)
Travelling and conveyance
Warehousing charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Auditors' remuneration
As an Anditor
Statutory Audit
Limited Review
Certification
Towards reimbursement of expenses

Details of CSR Expenditure:
As per the provisions of Section 135 of Compames Act 2013

£3) Armount required to be spent by the company during the year
h) Amoum of expenditure incurred
Amount spent (peid in cash)
(i) Construction’ Acquisition of any assels
(i3} For purpose other than (i) above
Amount to be spent (yet ta be paid in cashy
(i) Conssruction Acquisition of any sssels
{ii) For purpose other than (i) above
(c) Shortfall at the end of the year
{d) Total of previous years shonfall
() Reasan for shorifail
(f) Details of related party transactions
Name of Related Party
Relationship
(2) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by
entering into a contractue} abligation
(h) Nature of CSR activitics
Far the year ended Marveh, 31 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

18.59 28005
302 4.46
26 291
1.06 0.48

76.06 63.14
0.73 0.77

20.82 (2.84)
539 118
7.79 8.40
450 7.00

- 0.05

25.49 11.50
012 1.06

42,99 41.88
2.10 134
2.33 1.41
6.69 334
0.04 -
297 13144

220.93 559.58
0.65 0.96
1.05 135
0.55 1.08
0.07 0.02
2.33 3143
4.50 7.00
450 7.00
4.50 7.00

Nat Applicable Not Applicable

Edclgive Foundation Edelpive Foundation
Fellow Subsicliary  Fellow Subsidiary

For the causes of Edugation and Community Resilience and Climate Action (CRCA).

Far the year ended Marceh, 31 2022

Education Working to enhance chiid learning through work with system and community and support to the development

of contextual literature for children
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Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Contimied)

(Currency:Indian rupees in miltion)
3% Inceme fax

39.1. The componenis of income tax expense:

Current tax
Shert/{cxcess) provision for carlier years
Deferred tax

Total tax charge

Current tax
Deferved tax

39.2 Reconciliation of total tax charge

Accounting profit before tax as per financial statements

Tax rate (in percentage)
Tucome tax expense caleulated bused on this 1ax rate
Short/{excess) provision for carliar years
Effect of non-deductible expenses:
Others

Tax charge for the year recorded in P&L

Eflective tax rate

S

For the period ended

For the period ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
12.63 29,52

- {5.79)

80.52 45.59

93.15 6‘3;;2:2==

12,63 2373

80.52 45,59

For the period ended
Mareh 31, 2023

For the period ended
March 31, 2022

3701 254,01
25.17% 25.17%
93.38 63.93

- (5.19)

0.23) 11,18
03.15 69.32
25.11% 21.29%




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Comtinned)}

(Currency : Indian rupces in millions)
39  lacome tax

39.3. Movement of Deferred Tax assets / liabilities

Deferred tax

Deferred tax

asset / In profit or In OCI Directly in Total asset /
(liability) loss equity moventent (liability)
{Opcning) {Closing)
For the year ended Masrch 31, 2023
Deferred taxes in relation to:
Deferred Tax Assets
Provigion for expected credit loss 121.51 (70.08) " (70.08} 51.43
Retirement Benefits .65 (4.86) - (4.86) {4.21)
Bifference between book and tax WDV 30.03 (4.59) - (4.99) 5.04
(inclnding intangibles)
Lease fiability 4,06 2.39 - 2.39 6.45
Others 8.67 12,46 - 12.46 2113
Effective interest rate on financial assets 0.23 {1.58) - (1.58) (1.35}
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Stage 3 Income recognition - - - - -
Interest spread on assignment lransactions {13.44) (12,13} - (12.13) (25.57)
Effective intcrest rate on financial (11.37) 1.01 - 1.01 (10.30)
Right-of-use Asset (ROUY (3.28) (2.74} - 2.7 (6.02)
Total 117.06 {#0.52) - (80.5=2;=' . 3Ij_=§-=4r
For the year ended March 31, 2022
Deferred taxces in relation tor
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for expected credit Joss 149,92 128.41) - {28.41) 121.51
Retirement Benefils .75 .16) - @.10) 0.63
Difference between book and tax WDV 9.97 0.96 - 0.06 10.03
(including intangibles)
Lease liability 27.91 {23.85) - (23.85) 4.06
Others 20017 {11.30) - (1350} .67
Effective interest rate on financial assets {1.06) 1.29 - 1.29 023
Deferred Tux Liabilities
Effective interest rate on financial assets - - - - -
Stage 3 Income recognition {0.24) 0.24 - 0.24 -
Interest spread on assignment transactions {13.74) 030 - 0.30 {13.44)
Effective interest rate on financial (14.35) 2.68 - 2,98 (1137
Right-of-use Assel (ROU) (25.69) 2241 - 2241 (3.28)
Tatal 162,64 (43.58) - {45.58) 117.06




Edelweiss Retatl Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continned)
(Cwrrercy:Indian rupees in miltions)

40 Cash Flow Disclosurc

Change in Liabilities arising from financing acitivies

N As at Aprii e ChANEES in « AsatMarch
Particulars 01, 2022 Cash Flows Fair value Others: 31,2023
Debt Securities 2,504.43 (1,872.58) - (41.97) 889.88
Borrowings other than Debt Sccuritics 1,774.29 {1,073.12) - 442 7905.60
Suhordinated Liabilities 2,153.18 - - 37.42 2,190.60
Securitization liability 284.11 (284.11) - 813.50 813.50

201601 €3.229.81) - 81337 4.599.57

oo As at April , Changes in e As at March
Particulacs on, 2021 COPElOWS g el O 31, 2022
Debt Securities 292381 {100.01) - (19.37) 2.804.43
Boerrowings olher than Bebt Sccuritics 4,502.60  (2,720.40) - (7.91) 1,774.29
Subordinated Liabilities 2,119.64 0.01 - 34.13 2,153.18
Securitization Tiability - - - 28411 284,11

9.543.45 (2,820.40) - 290.96 7.016.01

*Includes the effcet of accrued bus not paid interest on borrewing, amonisation of processing fees ete




Edelweiss Retail Finanee Limited
Notes to the financial statenents for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in miltions)

41. Enrnings per Share

42,

(a)

b}

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit atributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the pericd.

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net Profit attributable to Equity holders of the Company - A - 277.86 184.6%
Weighted average Number of Shares
- Nurber of equity shares oulstanding at the beginning of the year 42,95 43,95
- Number of equity shares issued during the year - -
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 42,95 42.95
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (based 42.95 42.95
cn the date of issue cf shares) - B
Nominal valug of equity shares 10.00 10.00
Basic and diluted camings per share {in rupecs) (A/B) 6,47 4.30

The basic and diluted camings per share are the same as there are no dilutive/ potential equity shares issued or outstanding as
at the year end.

Caontingent Liability and Commitment:

Contingent Liability

Asat Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Taxation matters 0.57 0.57
Litigation pending against the company Nit Ni

The Company's pending litigations mainky comprise of claims against the Campany pertaining to procesdings pending witly
income Tax and other autharitics. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately
provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable. in the financial statements
The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effees on the Company's

financial position and resuits of operatiens,

Commitment:
Asat Asal
March 31, 2623 Muarch 31, 2622
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to bie executed on capital account - 16.95
Leun sanctiencd pending disbursements 116.04 55.59

AIF Fund pending commitments 65.97 127.31
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43,

(a}

h)

0]

(i)

(b

{iv}

Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plan - Provident funds

In accordance with Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellancous Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the
provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which, both the employee znd the Company contribute monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are made o
a recognized provident fund administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The employees contribute 12% of their basic salary and the Company
contributes an equal amount.

The Company recognised as of March 31,2023 Rs. "10.03" millions {March 31, 2022 : Rs 8.8 millions) for provident fund in the Statement of profit and loss,

Defined benefit plan - Gratuoity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering al? employees. The plan provides a lump
sum payment fo vested employees at retirement or termination of employment in accordance with the rules laid down in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The
gratuity benefit is partially provided threugh funded plan and annual expense is charged to the statement of profit and loss on the basis of actuarial valuation,

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan sssets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) for gratuity were carmied oul as at March 31, 2023,
The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured vsing the Projected Unit Credit
Mouthod.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plag and the amounts recognised in the Company’s
finzncial statements as at balance sheet date:

As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Present value of defined benefit obligations {A) 9.09 871
Fair Value of plan assets (B) - -
Present value of delined benelit obligations (A-B} 9,00 8.7
Net deficit / (assets} are analysed as:
Liahilities 9.09 3.7

Assels - -

Movemient in net defined henedit (asset) Habiliey:
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances Lo the closing balances for net defined benefil (asset) liability and ils components:
Net deficed benefil (assel)

Jiability
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Befined benefit ebligation Fair value of plan assets

Present value of defined benefit obligations (opening) 871 8.01 - - 871 8.01
Current service cost 2.06 1.60 - - 2.06 1.60
Pass service cost - - - - -
Interest cost 0.50 (.39 - - 0,50 0,39
1126 10.00 - - 11.26 10,60

Other compreheasive [ncome
Remeasurement Actoarial loss (gain) arising from :

Experience 0.20) (6.08) - - {0.20) (0.08)
Financial assumptions 0.68) (0.:32) - - {0.68) {0.32)
Expected retum from plan asscls - 0.7 - - - 0,79
(0.88) 0.32 - - {0.88) .39
Othiers
Transfer [n/ (Ouy) 0.28) (0.20) - - 0,28) 0.20)
Contributions by Emplover - - - - - -
Benefits paid (1.01) {148) - - (1.01} (1.48)
(1.29) (1.68) - - (1.29} (1.68)
Closing Balance (i} + (ii} + (iii} 9.09 8.71 - - 9.09 8.71

Represented by
Net defined benefit asset - -
Net defined benefit liability 909 8.71




Components of defined benefit plan cost:
For the year ended  For the year ended
Mareh 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022

(i} Recagnised in Statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 2.06 1.66
Interest cost 0.50 0.39
Expected retumn on plan assets - -
Past service cost - -
2,55 1.99

(i) Recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of net defined benefit Liability/asset) (.88) 0.39
Retum on plan assets excluding net interest - -

(0.88) 039
Tatal (i) + (ii) 1.67 2.38
Actuarial assamptions:
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reponting date:
Asat Asal
March 31, 2023 March 31,2032
Discount Rate 7.10% 5.90%
Salary Growth Rate 7.00% 7.00%
Willidrawal/Attition Rate (based on calegories) 16.60% 16.00%
Expecled return on plan Assets (p.a) NA NA
Mortality Rate TALM 2012- TALM 2012+
14{tltimate) L4{Ultimate)
Expecied weighted average remainin working fives of cmployecs 4 Years 4 Years
Sewnsitivity analysis:
.. Ar at March 31, 2023 As i March 31, 2022 3
Encrease Decrease Inciesse Decrease
Salary Growth Rate (-+- 1%} .56 (0.52) 0.57 (0.53)
Discount Rate (+/~ 195} (0.51) .56 {0.33) 0.59
Withdraw! Rate (+/- 1%) 040 (0.00) {0.03) 0.03
Mortality (increase in expected lifetime by I year) - - 0.00
Mortality (increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) - 0.0¢

The sensitivity is performed on (he DBO at the respective valuation date by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other parameiess constant. There wre no
chimges from the previous period 1o the methods and asswnptions underlying the sensitivity analysis,

Asset Habiliey comparisons: Asat Asat .
March 31,2023 March 31,2023

Present value of DBO 9409 3.71

Fair Value of Plan assels - .

Net (Assets)Linbilitiy 9.49 8.7%

(cy Compensated absences @

The Company provides for accunmlated compensated abscnces as a1 the balance sheet date using prejected unit credit mathod based on actuarial valuation, The
leave encashment on separation is paid on basic salary
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44, dMaturity Analysis of assets and linbilities
The table below shows an analysis of assels and liabilities analysed according lo when they are expected Lo be recovered or settled. With

regard to loans and advances to customers, the company uses the same basis of expecied repayment behaviour as used for contraclual
muaturity znalysis.

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particalars Within 12 After 12 Tatal Within 12 After J2 Total
manths months months months
Financial Assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 267.13 - 267,13 166.41 - 166,41
Banrk balances other than cash and cash
cquivalents 119,37 - 119.37 139.57 - 139.57
Securities held for rading 178.13 - 178.13 50,29 - 50.29
Trade receiveables 35.21 - 3521 19.64 - 19.64
Loans 2,797.17 2,646.50 5,443.67 6,495.39 3,741.03 10,236.43
Investments - 3,115.40 311540 - 1,54098 1,540,98
Other financial assets 81174 .45 826.1% 4.53 34.43 3895
Naon-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 72.53 72.53 - 61.96 63.96
Deferred tax assets (nst) - 36.54 36.54 - 117.06 117.06
Property, Plant and Equipment - 26.4% 26,49 - 17.50 17.50
Intangible assets under develapment - 0.00 0.0¢ - 92.94 92.94
Crher Tntangible assets - 112.26 112.26 - 0.77 0.77
Cither non-financial assets 13.73 98.58 112,31 47,51 110,60 158,11
Totak Asseis 4,222.48 6,122.75 10,345.23 6,923.34 5,719.28 12,642.62
Financizal Liabilities
Trade payables 57.27 - 57.27 5437 -0.51 54.06
Diebt securities 7.45 882,42 839.88 1,928.83 875.60 2,804.43
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 589.35 116.25 705.60 1,774.29 0.00 1,774.29
Subordinated Liabilitics 73.97 2,116.83 2,150.60 73.75 2,079.43 2,153.18
= Qther financial Habilities 578.42 443.50 1.021.92 637.37 36.59 673.97
Non-financial liabilities
Currene tax liabilities (net) 59.17 - 59.17 44.02 - 44.02
Provisions 12.95 - 12.95 11.24 0.14 11.38
QOther non-finageial tiabilitics 41.34 - 41,34 40.65 -0.65 40,00
Total Linbilities 1,419.72 3,559.01 4.978.72 4,563,92 2,991.41 7,555.33

et 1.802.70 2,563. 14 5,360.51 2,35943 2,127.87 5,087.29
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45. Segment reporting

The Compazy is registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non Benking Financial Company engaged in the business of lending and financing . Al other activitics of the compiny revolve around
the main business. Accordingly, there is no separate repontable segment and hence no disclosure is made under Ind AS 108 - 'Operating Sepment Reporting', Further, segmentation based on
geegraphy has not been presented as the Campany operates only in India,

4

&

. Related Party Disclosures

{) List of related parties and relationship:

Name of related parties by whom control is exerciscd  Edelweiss Financial Services Limited Ultitnate holding Company

Fellow Subsidiaries
{with whom transaetions have aken place)

Fellow Associales (From March 26, 2021 10 29th
March, 2623))

Key Management Personne!

Independent Director

(ii) Transactions with related parties :

Edelcap Securities Limited ($lolding company)

ECL Finance Limited

Edcl Finance Company Limiled

Edulweiss Investments Limited

Ecap Equitics Limited {Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)

EdelGive Foundation

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruetien Company Limited

Zuno General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Genera! Insurance Company
Limited)

Nido Heme Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Edelweiss Rural & Corporuie Services Limited

Edelweiss Tokie Life Insurance Company Limited

Edelweiss Valae And Growih Fund

Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund

India Credit Investment Fund 11

Nuvama Wealth und tnvestment Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited}

Nuvama Capital Services (IFSC) Limited {formcerly Edelweiss Sceurities (IFSC) Limited)

Nuvama Wealth Finanee Limited (Formesly known as Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited}
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)

Ms, Shilpa Gattani fwef Feb 6, 2020)

M. Phanindranath Kakarla {wef Sep L5, 2020}

Mr. Mchernosh Tata (wel July 3, 2020 upto 3151 Decomber, 2022
Mr. Decpak Mundra (wef Sep 15, 2020 upto Oct 13, 2021)

Mr Jignesh Gagloni {upto Sep 29, 2027)

Mr.Hitesh Bhadada (wef July 26, 2022)

Mr.Manoj Agarwal (wel Feb 1, 2023)

M Inara Wadhweniys (welTeb £, 2023y

Dir. Vinod Juneja (wel May 15, 2021}
Ms. Sunil Phatarphekar (wef Apr 12, 2020)

Non Executive Direcror
Wea Excoutive Direstor
Chief Exeeutive Officer
Non Executive MMrector
Company Secretury
Chiel Finameia! Oificer
Manager

Company Secrelury

Additional Director
Independent Director

: - For the year ended For the year emded
Nature of act FN -
: Transaction Reluted Party Name Maych 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Capital Account Transactinns:
Loans tiken from Maximum transaction during tic year
Edelweiss Rural & Corporale Services Limuted 1,750.80 560.00
ECL Finance Liinited £50.00 70,00
Nide Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) - 2,506.00
Ecap Equitics Limited{Formerly known as Ede! Land Limited) 400,60 -
Volume of ransactions durving the year
Edehveiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,750.00 1,740.00
ECL Finance Limited 1,890.00 87916
Nide Home Finance Limited (Formerly Jnown as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) - 6,500.00
Ecap Eguities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) S50.00 -




46. Related Party Disclosures

- . For the year ended  For the year ended
Nat TT t St
fratire o7 fransacton Related Party Name March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
‘Loans repaid 1w Maximum transaction during the year
Edelwelss Rugal & Corporate Serviees Limited 1,750.96 260400
ECL Finance Limited 1,290.65 79000
Nide Heme Finanee Limited {Fermerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finanee Limited) - 2,500.00
Ecap Equitics Limiled{Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 550,60 -
Volume of sransactions duving the vear
Edelweiss Rural & Corporale Services Limited 1,750.65 1,740.00
ECL Finance Limited 1,890.00 §79.16
Wide Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) B 6,500.00
Ecap Equities Limiled(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 550.00 -
Loans given 10 Mavimum trensaction during the year
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited} - 250.00
ECL Finance Limited 150.08 2,000.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 250,00 2,640.00
Ecup Equities Limitad(Formerly known as Edel Land Linsited) 970.00 -
ECAP Securities and Investments Limited(formerly Ecap Equities) 450.00 -
Valume of transactions during the year
Nido Home Finanee Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited} B 250.00
ECEL Finance Limited 26000 7,640.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 250.00 11,530.060
Ecap Equities Limited{Fermerly known as Ede} Land Limited) 1,270.00 -
ECAP Sccurties and Investments Limiled(formerly Ceap Equitics) 450,00 -
Loans repaid by Maximum transaction during the vear
Nido Hame Finance Limited (Formecly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) - 130,00
ECE Finance Limited 150,00 2,710.00
Edelweiss Rumal & Carporate Services Limited 1,000.00 1,750.00
Ecap Equities Limited(Fermerly known as Edel Land Liniited) £70.00 -
ECAP Securities and Investments Limited(formerly Ecap Equities) 45000 -
Yolume of transactions during the year
. Nido Home Finunce Limited (Formerly known as Edslweiss Housing Finance Limited) - 250.00
ECL. Finange Limited 340.00 9.360.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporsie Services Limited 3,70.00 8,066.06
Ecap Equitics Limited{Fermerly known as Edel Land Limited) 970,00 -
ECAP Securities and Investmenis Limited{fonmerly Ecap Equilies} 450,00 -
Loan penfohe sold under direct assignment Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) - 28282
ECL Finance Limited 811.61
Seeuritics Parchase Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Serviees Limited 1,671.49 -
Nido Home Finanece Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) - 378.65
Ecap Equities Limited{Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 634.95
Redemprion of Mon convenible debenture held by ECL Finance Limited 12.51 -
Edelweiss Rural & Carporate Services Limited 7.66 -
Redemption of Non convertible debenture held in ECL Finance Limited 14.75 11.04
(Face valuel
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) - .13
Loan sale to ARC Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (EARC Trusts) - 17886
Investment in Seeurity Receipt issued by Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
EARC Trust SC 416 - 152.07
ECL Finance Lirnited 4,166.40 -
Non convertible debentures purchased from Edel Finance Company Limited 140.u0 -
Sale of Security Receipts EARC TrasL - SC 385 61.63 -
EARC Trust « SC 416 52.65 -
EARC Trust - 5C 437 I1L.46 .
Indin Credit Investment Fund 11 4,252.20 -
Sale of sccuritics Muvama Wealth Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Finanee & investmonts 569 B
Limited} {Associate til] 29th March, 2023) -
ECL Finance Limited 178.13 -




46. Related Party Disclosures

Forthe yearended  For the year ended
Nature of Trassactipn v N
: Related Party Name March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Current Account Transactions:
Shared premises cost received from {nel) ECEL Finance Limbed - 0.90
Nile Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Tousing Finance Limited) 250 866
Zuno General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edclweiss General Insurance Company 0.90
Limited} ) -
Edelweiss Asset Mansgement Limited .01 018
Edelweiss Rurad & Comorate Services Limited - 010
Interest income on loan to Nido Heme Finance Limited (Formetly known as Edelweiss Heusing Finance Limited) - 2.08
ECL Finance Limited 2.43 108.30
Edelweiss Rural & Carporate Services Limited 14597 19835
Ecap Equities Limiled(Formerly known as Edel Land Linsited) 2072 -
ECAP Sccurities and Investments Limited(formerly Ecap Equities) [k
Interest Income ont Nen convertible Debentures ECL Finance Limited an 3.36
Nide Home Finanee Limited {Fornerly known as Edelweiss Howsing Finance Limited} 0.51 .81
Edel Finance Company Limiled 10,85 -
Service charges received Nide Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 0.74 148
Rembursement of ARC management fie from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 11.66 29.17
Shared premises cost paid {net) Nuvarna Wealth znd Investment Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Litaited) - 0.8
(Associate till 29th March, 2023} ”
ECL Finance Limited 17.94
Cost reimbursement paid 1o (net) Edelweiss Finaneizl Services Limited 0.86 438
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.30 .50
Ecap Equities Limited{Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) - 041
ECL Finance Limited 0.51 1.29
NMido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 2.60 -
Cost reimbtrsement received from {net) Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) - B2
Edulweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.0
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (formerly knavwn as Edshyeiss Broking Limited) 0.00
{Associate tll 291h March. 2023) ) ’
Edel Finanee Company Ld 0.62 -
Management Feos paid Edelweiss Assct Recunstruction Compavy Limited 3494 19.68
Interest Expense on lean from Edelweiss Rural & Corporale Services Limited 2.25 4,84
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly knows as Edelweiss Housing Finanee Limited) - 19.32
ECL Finunce Limited 24.56 1.29
Ecap Equities Limited (Formerly known as Ede! Lang Limited) 0.19 -
Interest Expense on Non conventible debentures Edelweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited 1.62 1.64
Edelweiss Finance & Investnents Limited - 0.00
Tdel Finance Company Limited 6,88 6.94
ECL Finance Limited 1.53 1.56
Leap Equities Limited{Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 0.72 -
Interest Expenses on Sub-deby Edelweiss Tokio Lifc Insurance Company Limited 3387 30.46
Brokerage paid MNuvama Capital Services {IFSC) Limited {formerly Edelweiss Seeurities (IFSC) Limited} - 0.03
Edelweiss Investment Limited 01 0.0¢
Enterprise Service charge paid to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0,76 063




46. Related Party Disclosures

: y For the year cnded  For the year ended
Nat I T vy
Nzture of Trapsaction Related Party Name Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Advisory fees paid to Nido Home Finance Limited {(Formezly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) - 4306
Guarantes e paid Lcap Equities Limiwed{Formerly known as Edel Land Linvted) - 0,00
Edelweiss Rurai & Corporate Services Limiled 0.00 0.00
Serviee Fee paid to ECL Finance Limited 0.46 -
Risk & Reward Fees on Security Receipt sale paid Edelweiss Finaneial Services Limited - 0.86
CSR Expenscs Paid to EdelGive Foundation 4,50 7.00
ESCP cost reimburserment Edlelweiss Finnneial Services Limited 234 296
Rating support fees paid to Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.06
Director Sitting fees Mr. Vinod Juncja G.60 024
Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar ka4 022
Remuneration paid to Mr. lignesh Gaglani .78 126
Mr. Amit Pandey - .53
Mr. Mchemosh Tata 1L 2023
Mr. Shuilendra Dhupiya - 4.81
EHitesh Bhadada 2.57 -
Manoj Agarwal 208 -
Inara Wadhwaniya 442 -
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment ECL Finange Limited - 0.00
Edelweiss Broking Limited - 0.00
Nide Home Finunce Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 0.13 0.30
0.01 -

Purchase of Praperty, plant and equipment

Edelweiss Rural & Carporate Services Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Comporate Services Limited
ECL Finance Limited

Nature of Transaction

Related Party Name

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balances with related parties:
Interest accrued on louns taken from Ecap Equitics Limited(Formerly known a5 Edel Land Limited) 0.17 -
Loans given ta ECL Finance Limited - 80.00
Edelweiss Rural & Camporate Services Limited - 347000
300.00 -

Ecap Equities Limnited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)




46, Related Party Disclosures

N N For the year epnded  For the year ended
Nai IT: lion elated Party .
Tnreod ransad Related Party Name Murch31, 2023 Msoch 31,2022
Interest acerued on loan given to Nitks Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edlweiss Housing Finance Limited) - 187
ECL Finanee Litnited 0.00 31169
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Linited 0.00 2088
Eeap Equilics Limited{Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 0.33 -
ECAP Sceurities and Investments Limited{formerly Ecap Equities) .37 -
Nen convertible debentures (at face value) held by Edelweiss Runf & Carporate Services Limited 10.31 1152
Nuvama Wealth Finanee Limited(Formerly known as Edelweiss Finance & Investmemts . 0.43
Limiled) (Associnte till 29th March, 2023) "
ECL Finanee Limited 4.93 17.44
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 17.73 -
Subordinated debenture {Face Value) held by Edelweiss Takio Life I Company Limited 140.00 140.06
Perpetual debenture {Face Value) held by Edel Finanee Company Limiled 71.00 71.06
Nan conventible debentures (Face Value) held in ECL Finanee Limited 21.62 36.37
Nido Hame Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finaace Limited) 1.80 7.47
Edef Finance Company Limited 140.00
Interest acerued on Perpetual debentures held by Edel Finance Cotnpamy Limited 1.84 -
Interest acerued n Subordinaled debentures held by Eddelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 189.70 153.34
Tnterest acerized on Nan convertible debensures held by Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.03 0.04
ECL Finance Limited 034 0.07
Wuvama Wealth Finance Limiwd{Formerly known as Edelweiss Finance & Invesiments 0.00
Limited) (Associate 1l 26t March., 2023) '
Edel Finance Company Limited - 1.46
Ecap Eqguities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Limited} 0.58 -
Interest acerued on Non cenvertible debentures held in- ECL Finanee Limited 047 194
Nido Home Fmance Limuted (Formerly known as Edebeeiss Housing Finance Limited) 013 052
Edel Finance Company Limited 10.85 -
Trade Payables Nido Heme Finance Limsted (Formerly knows as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 099 3,70
Edelweiss Financial Servives Limited 0.1 0.v0
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.53
ECL Finance Limited 140 5.50
Nuvzma Carital Saivices (IFSC) Limited (fermerly Edebweiss Securities (IFSC) Limited) 0.02
{Assaciate 61 29th March, 2023) o
Nuvama Wealils and Investment Lienited {formerly known s Edelweiss Broking Limited) 015
(Associate Gl 29th March, 2023) i -2
Ecap Equities Limited(Formerly known as Edel Land Linvited) - 0.02
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (frmuerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services 0.3
Limiled) (Associate till 29th March, 2023} " .
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limtited 0.98 -
ESOP cost payable ta Edelweiss Financtal Services Limited 0,32 0.66
Trade Recervables ECL Finance Linited .22 6.3%
Edelweiss Rural & Corperate Services Limited 2.6¢ -
Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known ns Edejweiss [ousing Finance Limited) 9.25 622
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 2314 7.29
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.0l
Other Reeeivable Edeiweiss Rural & Corperate Services Limited . 0.1%
Other Payable Nido [Tome Finanee Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss IHousing Finonce Limited) - 0.08
ECL Finance Linited - 0.31
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. ; Asad Asat
Nature of Transaction plate ;N
h Related Party Name Mlurch 3, 2023 March 31,2022
Margin reccivable Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly known as Edetweiss Custodial Services 047
Limited) (Associale all 20th March, 2023} - .
Nuvama Capital Services {IFSC) Limized (formerly Edelweiss Secunities (IFSC) Limited) _ 20.50
(Associnte 1ill 29t March, 2023) :
Tovestment i Seeurity Reccipis issued by Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
EARC Trust SC 373 42.08 97.34
EARC Trust 5C 385 114.45 180.88
EARC Trust SC 416 97.7% 156.44
EARC Trust SC 374 30.47 -
EARC Trust SC 378 10.74 -
EARC Trust SC 417 206.99 -
Investient in Securities Edelweciss Private Equity Teeh Fund 27736 -
Edclweiss Value & Growth Fund 357.60 -
Corporate Guarantee 1aken from Ecap Equities Limited(Formesly known as Edel Land Limited) - iLs?
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 3249
0232 1,102,283

Risk & Rewards sharing armngement

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Nates;
1 As pan of fund based activities, intergroup company loans and advances are voluminous in nature and cartied on at arm's length and in the ordinary course of busincss. Pursuant to Ind AS 24 -
Related Party Disclosures, maximum amount of Joans given and repaid alongwith the b jon volutme are disclosed above. Interest income and expenses on such loans and advanees are
disclosed on the basis of full amounts of such loans and advanees given and repaid.

il person ioned above excludes provision made for granity, leave encasliment, bonus and deferned bonus which are provided for

2 information relabing to

group of employees on an oversll basis. These ore included on cash basis, The variable compensation included herels s on cash basis.

3 The above list contain name of only those related panties with whom the Cempany has underiaken transactions {or the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,
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Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 ¢Contirued)
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47.  Leases

47.1. Setout below are the carrying amounts of righi-of-use assets recognised and the
movements
Balance as at Apnil |
Addition
Lease pre-closure
Amertisation for the year
Balance as at March 31

47.2. Set out helow are the carrying amounts of lease llabilities 2nd the movements
Balance as at April 1
Additions? reversal {nes}
Interest on lease liabilitics
Lease pre-closure
Repayment of fease obligation
Halance as at March 31

47.3. Amounts recognised i profit or loss:
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Reversal of lease pre-closure
Total

47.4, Total cash autflow for leases:
Cash outflow of long term leases
Cash outflow of short term leases
Total

47.5. Details regarding the contractual maturitfes of Jease liabilitics, on an undiscoented hasis

Less than 1 year
1-3 years

3.5 years

TFotal

48. Cost sharing

For the yezar ended
March 31, 2023

Fot the year ended
March 31, 2622

13.05 102,15
19.53 37.34
(0.46) (98.47)
(8.20) (28.02)
23.92 13.05
16.12 110.88
18.69 26.1%
3.93 11.34
(1.50) (105.64)
(9.62y {26.58)
25.62 16.12
8.20 28.02
1.93 1134
{104} {7.22}
9,09 32,14
9,62 2761
0.23 0.07
9.85 27.67
As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
7.31 7.21
14.61 642
370 249
25.62 16,12

Edetwreiss Financial Scrvices Limited. being the ultimste holding Company along with fellow subsidiarics ineurs expenditure like
common senier management compensation cost, Group mediclaim, nsurmnce, sent. electricity charges ete. which is for the common
benefit of itsell and its cerlain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company. This cost so expended is reimbursed by the
Company on the basis of number of employees, time spem by cmployces of other Companies, actual identifications ete. On the same
lines, employees’ costs expended Gf any) by the Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the Company.
Accordingly, and as identificd by the imanagement, the expenditure heads in note 37 and 38 include reimbursements (received)/ paid
and are net of reimbursements paidi{received). Based on the management’s best estimate Rs. 19.67 million is received during the

year {Previous year Rs. {8.02) million).
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49.
(a}

v}

©

(d)

Risk Management

Introduction and risk profile

The Company’s overall objective i5 to manage its business, and the associated sisks, in 2 manner that balances serving the interests of its
custemers and investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Cormgpany.

The Company follows following for effective risk management:
1} Acceptanee of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all individuals within the Company;
2) Owanership of risk identification, assessment, data and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate; and
3} Firmwide structures for risk governance

The Company ensure improvement through efforts to enhance controls, ongeing employce trining and development and other measures,

Risk Management Structure

The Company has a risk management pelicy framework for risk identification, assessment and comrol to effectively manage risks assoviated
with the various business activities. The risk function is monitored primarily by the business risk group. The Company has also established a
Risk Committee that is responsible for managing the risk arising out of various business activities.

Company's risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are able to withstand market volatility and scenarios of sharply
declining prices. The Company centralises the risk monitoring systems to menitor it's client's credit exposure which is in addition to the
moniloring undertaken by the respective businesses.

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is respensible for develeping and monitoring the Company’s
risk management policies, The Committee holds regular meetings and report to board on its activities.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliancee with the Company's risk management policics and procedures, and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The sudit committee is assisted in its
oversight rofe by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the sudit committee.

Risk mitigation and risk colture

The Company’s business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit appraisal & credit
centrel processes, centralised operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the preseribed policics and approving leans
at transaction level as well as our risk managemsnt processes and policies allow layers of multiple checks and verifications. Company's key
business processes are regularly monitored by the business and‘or operation heads. Company’s loan approval and administration procedures.
collection and enforcement procedures are designed 1o minimise delinquencies and maximise recoveries.

At ali levels of operations, specifically tailored risk repons are prepared and distributed in order ro ensure that all business divisions have
aceess 1o extensive, necessary and upto date information.

It is the Company’s policy that a regular briefing is given to the Board of Dircetors and all other relevant stakehelder on the wilisation of
market limits, proprictary investments and liquidity, plus any other risk developmenis.

It is the Company's policy 1o ensure that risk awareness is embedded in s organisational risk culiure. Employees are expected {o take
ownership and be accountable for the risks the Company is expesed te, that they decide 1o take on. The Company’s continuous training and
development emphasises that employees are nade aware of the Company’s risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and
responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within it's risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are
important elements of employees’ annual ratings and remuneration seviews.

Types of Risks

The Company's risks are gencrally categorized in the following risk types:

Risk Exposure Arising from Measurement Manapement of risk

Cash equivalens, ade seceivables,
Credit Risk finuncizl assets measured at amortised Aging Analysis, Credit Ratings
cost,

Credit limits and regular
monitoring,

Rolling cash flow Availability of surplus cash, committed

Liguidity Risk Borrowings and other liabilicics foreeasts credit lines and borrowing faeilities

Regular menitoring to keep the exposure at
Cush flow forecasting an acceptable level, with option of taking
Sensitivity analysis Interest Rate Swaps/Futures if deemed

NeCessary.

Investments in Governent Sceuriteis,
Market Risk | Treasury Bills, Equity Shares, Futures
& Options
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49.1. Credit Risk

(a)

{b

(G

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 1o the Company if 4 customer or counterparty te a financial instrument fails to meet its
contraetual obligations, and ariscs principally from the Company's loans ang trade receivables. The Company has a policy of dealing
with ereditworthy counterpartics and obtains sufficient collaicral, where spproprinte, a5 a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults. In case the koans are to be restructured, similar credit assessment pracess is followed by the Company.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mminly by the individual charscteristics of cach customer. However, management
also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its custamer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in
which customers operate.

The Company muarages and controls credit risk by seting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual
counterparties/Groups (Single Borrowing Limil/Group Borrewing Limit) and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limils.

Credit quality of a customer is asscssed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Cempany and market
intelligence. OQuistanding customer receivables are regularly monitored, The credit quality review process aims to aliow the Compaty to
assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it Is exposed and take corrective actions.

YImpairment Assesment:
The Conpany applies {he expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss. The expecled credit loss allowance is computed

based on a prevision matrix which 1akes inte account historical credit Joss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information,

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default, probability of defanlt and loss given defsult, The Company has devised an
internal model to evaluate the probability of default and loss given defauli based on the paramcters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the
loans are classified into various stages as follows:

internal rating grade Internal grading description Stages
Performing
High grade 0 dpd and | to 30 dpd* Stape ¥
Standard grade 31 1e 90 dpd* Stage
Credit Impaired
Individually impaircd NPA* Stage 11

*Excluding non perfonming asset {NPA)
*“*Represent loan assets classified as NPA as per the extant RBI guidelines

Expected Credit Loss

Credit loss is the differcnce between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in zccordance with the contract and ali the cash
flows that the entity expects to reccive (i.c., ail cash shortfalls), discounted at the criginal EIR. Expected Credit Loss (BCL)
computation is not driven by any single methadology, however methodology and approach used must reflect the following:

- An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes

- Reasonable and suppertable information that is available without undue cost and effort at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions;

- Time vahze of moncy

While the time value of money clement is currently being factored into ECL measurement while discounting cash flows by the Effective
Imerest Rate (EIR), the objective of developing a macreeconomic mode] using exogenous macrocconomic varinbles (MEVs) is to
address the first rwo requirements. This has been achieved by using the model output 10 adjust the PD rigk component in order to make
it forward locking and probability-weighted.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

Company considers a financial instrument defsulted, classified us Stage 3 (eredit-impaired) for ECL calculations, in all cases when the
borrower becomes 90 days past due or classified as non performing asset (NPA) as per RBI guidelines, Classification of asscts forin
stage | to stage 2 has been canvded out bused on SICR criterion. Accounts which are more than 30 days past due have been identified as
accounts where significant increase in credit risk has been observed. These sccounts have been classificd as Stage 2 assets, When such
events occur, the Company carcfully considers whether the event should result in treuting the customer as defaulted and therefore
assessed as Stage 3 for ECL caleulations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate,
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Prababilitv of Defautt

Probability of default (PD}) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. PD estimation process is done based on
histerical internal data available with the Company, While arriving at the PD, the Company alse ensures thal the factors that affects the
maero ceonomic trends are considered to a reasonable extent, wherever necessary, Company calevlares the 12 month PD by taking into
account 1he past historical trends of the Loans/portfelic and its credis performance. In case of assets where there is a significant
merease ineredit risk / esedit impaired assets, Kifetime PD has been applicd.

Loss Given Defsult (LGDY

The LGD represents expecied losses on the EAD given the evenl of default, taking inte account, among other attributes, the mitigating
effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value of meney. The Less Given Default (LGD) has been
computed with workeut methodology. Along with actual recoveries, value of the underlying collateral has been factored in to estimate
future recaveries in LGD computation. Workout LGD computation involves tlie actual recoveries as well as future recoverics (s a pan
of the workout process) on a particular facility, as a percentage of balance outstanding at the time of Default/Restructuring. The
assessment of workout LGD was then performed. Principal outstanding cach loan was assessed, which went into the denominator of
the LGD caleulation. LGD computation has heen done for each segment and sub-segment separately.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The amourt which the borrewer will owe to the portfelio at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Defauls (EAD). While the
drawn credit line reflects the explicit exposure for the Company, there might be variable exposure that may increase the EAD. These
exposures are of the nature where the Company provides future commitments, in addition to the current credit. Therefore, the exposure
will contails both on and off balance sheet values, The value of exposurs is given by the fellewing formuia:

EAD = Drawn Credit Line + Credit Conversion Factor * Undrawn Credit Line
Where,
Drawn Credit Line = Current outstanding amount
Credit Conversion Factor (CCF} = Expected future drawdown as a proportion of undrawn amount

Undrawn Credit Line = Difference between the totaf amount which the Company has commitied and the drawn credit line While the
drawn exposure and limits for the customer are available, the modelling of CCF is required for computing the EAD

Forward looking adjustments

“A measure of ECL is an unbiased probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of pessible cutcomes snd
using reasonable and supportable information that is avaitable without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events,
carreat conditions and forecasts of future economic canditions.™

To fulfil the above requirement Company has incorperated forward looking information into its measurement of ECL. The objective of
developing a macrocconemic model using exogenots macrocconomic variables (MEVS) 15 10 address the requirements of unbiasud,
probability weighted oulcomes while taking inte account curvent conditions as well as future cconomic conditions. This will be
achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk compenent in order to make it forward locking and probability-weighted.

Exogenous macrocconomic parameders were used as independent (X variables to pradict the dependens (Y) variable. The Company
formulates base case view of the future direction of ralevant economic varlable as well as a represemative range of other possible
forecast scenario. This involves developing twe or more additional economic scenaries and considering the relative probabilities of
each outcome,

1

Data sourcing

The Company is expected 1o obtain reasonable and supportable informaticn that is available without undue cost or effort, Keeping in
tnind the above requirement macroeconomic information was aggregated from various research database like RBI database, Economic
Intelligence Unit (EIU), Blocmberg, World Bank, Citi research etc. Beyond 2022 macro-ecenamic variables are forccasted by mean
reverting the values to their long term average. External information includes economic daia and forecasts published by governmental
bodies and monetary authorities in the country, supranational organisations such as the GECD and the IMF, and selected private sector
and academic forecasters,

Probability weighted scenario creations:

To incorperaic macrocconomic impact inlo prebability-weighted, cach scenario has an associated probability. In order 1o cosure
cansistency across macroecenomic models, these probabilities were calculated at an overall level for both Retail and Non-Retail
portfolios, considering the impact of a scenario across different portfolios may differ based on endogenous factors, the probability ol a
seenario unfelding is purely exegenous, and hence sheuld not vary,

The Company has identificd and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for cach pertfolio of financial instruments and
using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationship between marco-ecenemic variables and credit risk and credit losses.

Predicted relationship between the key indicators and defalt and loss rates on various portfolios of financial assess have been
developed based on analysing histerical data over the past years.
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49.1. Credit Risk
49. L1, Analysis of risk concentration
The following tahle shows the risk concentraticn by industey for the components of the halance sheet.
Additional diselosures for eradit quality and the maximum exposure for credit risk per eategorics based

on the Company’s internal credit assessment system and year-cnd stage classification are further
disclosed in Note 12.

industry analysis

Finuncial

As at March 31, 2023 services Retajl ~ Construction Wholesale Tatal

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent 386.50 - - - 386.50

and other bank balances

Securities held for trading 178.13 - - - 178,13

Trade receivables 3521 - - - 35.21

Loans - 3,647.33 - 1,796.34 5,443.67

Investments 2,331.79 783.61 n - 311540

Other finaneial asscts 576.08 250.11 - - 826.19
3,507.70 4,681,035 - 1,796.34 9,985.10

Loan Commitments - 156.04 - - 116.04

Fotal 3.587.70 4. 79710 - 1.796.34 14,101.14

F———
As at March 31, 2022 Fimanelal © pewit  Construction  Whelesale  Total
services

Financial assets

Cash und cash cquivalent 305.87 - - - 305.87

and otler bank balances

Sceurities Leld for irading 50.29 . - - 50.29

Frade receivables 19.64 - - - 19.64

Loans 4,078.68 4,761.22 2494.14 1,132.38 10,236.43

Investments 300.76 1,140.77 - 69,45 1,540,98

Other non fmanciaf assets 38.96 - - - 38.96
4.794.20 592199 24414 1,231.83 12,192.17

Loan Commitments - 55.59 - - 35.59

Tota} 4,794.20 5.977.58 244.14 1231.83 1224776
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42,1, Credit Risk

49.1.2. Collateral held and other credit enhancements

The tables on the follawing pages show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset along with

Principal type of coltateral

Property
Praperty

Property

()
details of principal type of collateral:
Maximum exposure o credit risk (carrying
amount before ECL}
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets
Loans (at amortised cost}
(i) Retail loans 3,160.88 4,305.45
(i) Wholesale loans - 1,722.59
Totak (A) 3,160.88 6,028.04
Loan commitments 110.78 53.52
Fotal (B) 110.73 53.52
Total (A + B) 3,271,66 6,081.56
¢p)  Financial assets that are stage 3 and related collsteral held in order to mitizate potential losses are piven below:

Asat March 31, 2023

Financial assets

Loans (at amortised cost)
(i} Retail loans
(ii} Wholesale loans

Tatal (A)
Loan cemmitments

Total (B)
Total (A + B)

As at March 31, 2022

Financiat assets

Loans (at amonised cast)
(i) Retail Inans
(it) Wholesale loans

Total (A}
Loan commitinents

Tatal (B)
Total (A + B)

Maximum exposure fo  Associated ECL Carrying amount  Fair valuze of
credit risk {carrying collateral
amaount before ECL)

146.23 27.02 119.21 180.36
146.23 27.02 119.21 180.36
146.23 27.02 112.21 180.36
225,20 3756 187,64 415,57
225,20 37.56 187.64 415.57
225.20 37.56 187.64 415.57
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49.1.  Credit Risk
492.1.3. Overview of modilied and farborne loans

The table below inchzdes assets that were modified and, therefore, treated as forbome during the year, with
the related modification gain / {loss) suffered by the Company,

Particulzrs ¥or the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Amontised costs of financial asscts medified during the year

- 561.23
Net modifieation gain / (loss)

- 23,45

49.1.4, Transfer of financinl assets

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such 2 way that par
or ali of the transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Securitisations
Carrying amount of transfcrred asscts 1,132,713 2971.37
theld as Cotlateral)
Carrying ameunt of associated fisbilities 813.50 315.55
Fair value of assets 1,232,464 277.89
Fair value of associated liabifities 813.50 315,55
Net position at FV 419.14 (37.66)

e

St s
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49.2. Liquidity Risk

49.2.1.

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk tlat the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financiaf liabilities 1t are seled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company might be unable to meel its payment obligations when they fall due a5 a resolt of
mistnatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress cirenmsiances.

The company has financing srangement fom banks/ financial fnstitutions in form of committed credit lines.

Analysis of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

On 1to}4 15daysto 1monthto2 2manthsted I mentissto 6nontkste 1yearfod 3yearsfo5  Overs

As atdarch 31, 2023 demend days 1 manth months manths & months 1 year years years vears Total
A. Financiak Assets

Cashs and cash equivalent and

other bank balances 267.13 - - 95.28 - 2.00 22.09 - - - 386.50
Securities held for trading - - - - - 24.06 154.07 - N - 178.13
Trade reccivables - - - 3521 - - - - - - 3521
Loans - 49.32 83.77 157.935 1,515.60 684.18 641.46 1.363.54 §5697  2,71840 8,071.20
Investments - - - - - - - - 783.61 233179 3,115.39
Other financial assets - - g11.75 - - .09 - 1435 - - ¥16.19
Total undiscounted financial

assets 267.13 49.32 895.52 28R.A44 1,515.60 710.33 #17.601 1,377.89 1,640.58 505009 12,612.02
B. Financial Liabilitics

Trade payables - - - 57.27 - - - - - - 57.27
Debt securities - 3.09 - 29% 3409 9.16 56.96 410.63 1,032.83 - 1,518.68
Borrowings (other than debr

securities) - 1387 14.83 14.66 43.46 83.8% 435.83 131.04 - - 738.69
Subordinated financial

liabilitics - - - - - 22.20 154.95 51040 2,164.30 - 2,851.84
Other financial liabilities - - 476.25 13.78 £1.45 30,68 46,26 140.68 79.46 22336 1,021.92
Taotal undiscounted financial

liabilities - 17.96 491.0% 88.70 58.00 145,87 69409  1,192.75  3,276.59 21336 ,188.41
Net financial assets /

@iabititics) 267.13 31.37 404.43 199.74 1,457.61 564.46 £23.52 185.14 (163601} 4,826.83  6,424.21

Meie - The company has financing arrangement from banks/ financial instilutions in form of comumitted credif lines. Undrawn conunitted credit lines as at March 31, 2025 is Nill,

49.2.

2

. The table below shows the expected maturity of the Company’s lean commitments

Undrawn loan commitments - - - - $16.04 - - - - - 116.04

Total - - - - 116,04 - - - - - 116.04




On lTield I5daysto] Imonthio2 2monthste3 3monthsto6 Smonthsto Jycarto3 3ycarsie$

As at Mareh 31,2022 Over § years Total

demand duys month tmornths months months 1 year years years
A. Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent and
other bank balances 166.41 - - 11234 - 5.15 22.06 - - - 30598
Securities held for wading - - - 13.77 - 4.56 31.96 - - - 5629
Trade receivables - - . 19.64 . . - - - - 19.64
Loans - 957,59 128.20 670.55 358,95 427.87 4.933.33 2,262.87 699.94 3,306.11 13,785.41
Investments - - - - - - - - 1,240.22 300.76 1,540,98
Other financial assets - - 24.05 - 0.86 0.09 - 13.96 - - 38.96
Total undiseounted financial
assols 16641 997,59 152.25 81632 359.81 437.67 4,987.35 2,276.53 1.940.16  3,606.87 1574125
B. Financial Liabilities
Trade payables - - - 54.06 - - - - - - 54.08
Gther payables - - - - - - - - - - -
Debt securities - 4.81 - 165 4.8% 1433 2,097.76 163.01 162.37 1,048.26 3,501.00
Borrowings {other thas debt
securitios} . - 14979 29,60 q12.82 454.77 805.45 . . . 185243
Deposits - - - . - - - - - . -
Subordinated financisl liabilities - v - - - 2220 148,94 4228 R78.07 177552 3,16701
Other financial liabilities - 2106 366.70 43.63 28.81 66.53 110.24 EEA D) 249 “ 67397
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities - 2587 516.49 13195 446,44 558.23 3,162.38 53940 104294 282478 9,248.47
Net financial assets / (liabititics) 16641 971,72 (364.24) 684.37 (86.63)  (120.56)  1,824.97  1,737.43 897.22 78209 649278

Mote - The company has financing arrangement from banks/ financial institations in form of committed credit lincs. Undrawn commilted credit lines as at March 33, 2622 3s Nil.
The table below shows the expexted maturity of the Company's loan commitmenis

Undrawn loar conmitments - - - - 55,59 - - - - - 55.59

Total - - - - 55.59 - - - - - 55,59
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49.2. Liquidity Risk

49.2.3. Financial assets availzble to support future funding

Following table sefs out availability of company’s (inaneial assets to support funding

Encumbered Unencumbered "
As at March 31, 2023 Pledgeas  Contractualiy/jegally  Available as Others Tot:tln(:;r:: e
collateral restricted assets collateral

Cash and cash equivalent 37.01 - 349.4% - 386.50

including bank balance

Securities held for trading - - 178.13 - 178.13

Trade reccivables - - 35.21 - 3521

Loans 1,775.26 917.12 2,751.29 - 5,443.67

Iavestmenis - T83.61 2,331.79 - 3,115.40

Praperty, Plant and Equipment 0.37 - - - 0,37

Other financiat assets - (40 §26.19 - 826.19

Tatal asscts 1,812.64 1, 70873 6,472.10 - 9,985.47

Encumbered Unencumbered Total casrying
As at March 31, 2022 Pledge as Contractually/ legally  Avaifable as Others amount
coliateral restricted assets cellateral

Cash and cash equivalent

including bank kalance 37.01 268,97 - 305.98

Sceurities heid for trading - - 50.29 - 50,29

Trade receivables - - 19.64 - 19.64

Loans 4,783.51 149,84 5,303.08 - 10,236.43
. Javesiments - 1,240.22 00716 - £,540.98

__T'Pmpeny, Plant asd Equipment 0.37 - - - 0.37

= Other financial assets - - 38.56 - 38.96

Tetal assets 4,820.89 1,390.06 5,981,70 - 12,192.65

Notes:-
1 Represents assets which are not pledged and Group believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for legal or ather reason

2 Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but thut the group would not consider readily availuble to secure
funding in the normal course of business
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49.3.

49.3.1

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk nssociated with the effect of changes in market factors such us inlerest rates, equily prices, credil spreads or
implicd volatilitics, on the valuc of assets and liabilitics held resulling in loss of fisure carnings. The objective of the Company's markel
risk management is fo manage and control market risk exposiures within aceeptable parameters. The Company scparatcs iis exposure o
market risks between trading and non-trading portfolies.

Exposure to market risk ~ Non trading port{olios

Interest rate risk - The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fiuctuations in the future cash
flows or fair values of financial instruments beeause of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally threugh
monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands,

ALCO is the menitoring body for compliance with these Jimits. ALCO reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of floating and
fixed rate assets and liabilities. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day manageiment of interest rate tisk,

Tolal market risk exposure

The fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate duc 1o changes in market variables such as interest rates. The
Company ciassifies its exposures to markei risk into non—trading portfolios.

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars . : : Primary risk
Carrying  Traded risk  Non-traded Carrying Traded risk  Non-raded sensitivity
ameunt risk amount sisk

Financial Assets
Cash and cash cquivalent and other 386.50 - 386.50 305.87 - 30587  Interest rate
bank balances
Securities held for trading 178.13 178.13 - 50.29 50.29 - Interest rate
Loans 5,443.67 - 5,443.67 10,236.43 - 10,236.43  Interest ratc
Investments 311540 - 311540 1,540.48%8 - 1.540.98  Interestrale
Trade receivables 3521 - 3511 19.64 - 19.64
Other financial assets 826.19 - $26.19 38.96 . 38.96
Total 9,985,106 178,13 9,806.97 12.192.17 50.29 12.141.88
Finunciul Linbility

ehi securities BE9.84 - 459.88 280443 - 2.804.43  iInlerestrate
Borrowings {other than Debt 105,60 - T05.60 1,774.29 - 1,774.28  Interest mte
Sccurities)
Subordinated Liabilities 2,190,60 - 2,190.60 2,153.18 - 2,153.18  Interestrate
Trade payables 57.27 - 57.27 54.37 - 54,37
Other liabilitics 1,021.92 - 1,021.92 67375 - £73.75

Total 4.863.27 - 4,865.27 7.460.02 - 7.460.02
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49.3. Market Risk
49.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will aftect future cash flows of
financial instruments. The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumned
changes in interest rates on the profit or loss for a year, based on the floating rate non-trading financial
assets and financial liabilities held as at year end,

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all
other variables being constant) of the Company’s statement of profit and loss and equity.

Increase/ Increasein = Decreasein  Increasein  (Decrease) in

For the year ended (Decrease) in  profit after  profit after Equity Equity
basis points tax fax

INR Loans
March 31, 2023 25/{25) 533 (5.33} 533 (5.33)
March 31, 2022 25/(25) 6.72 (6.723 6.72 (6.72)
INR Borrowings
March 31, 2023 25/(25) (1.18) 1.18 {1.18) L1838

March 31, 2022 25/(25) (3.34) 134 (3.34) 334
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s0.1.

A,

Fair Value measurements
¥aluation principles

Fair vulue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to wansfer a liability in an erderly transaction in the principal {or mast
advantageous) market at the measurement date under curremt markel conditions (ic., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using @ valuation techuigue. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments ate classified based on
a hierarchy of valuation technigues;

Eevel 1 — valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prizes for identical instouments in active markets that
comparny can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — valuation techaique using observable inputs:Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly
or indirectly observable market data available over the enlire period of the instrument's life,

Level 3 — valuation technique with significant unobservable inpuis: Those that include one or mere wnobscrvable fuput that is significant to the
measurcment as whole.

Refer note 3.11 for more details on fair velue hierarchy
Valuation governance framework

The Company’s fair value methodalogy and she governance over its madels includes a number of controls and other procedures {o ensure nppropriale
safeguards are in place to ensure its quality snd adequacy, Al new preduct initiatives (including their valuation methodelogies) are subjeet to
upprovals by various functivns of the Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference to exiernally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent pricy determination o
validation is used, Far inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with preater weight given 1o information that is considered

to he more relevant and reliable.

The responsibifily of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is also responsible for
establishing precedures governing valustion and casuring fair valoes are in compliance with accounting standards.

‘The following table shows an anabysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hicrarchy

As at March 34, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 ‘Fotal

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Financial Assets held fur trading
Other debt seeurities 178.13 - - 178,13

‘Total financiak instruments meastred at feic vajue - A 178.13 - - 17813

Other finoreial sssets
Sceurity Reccipls (SR) - - 783.61 783.61

Total financial instruments measured at fair value - B - - 783.61 743.61

Other financial assets

Units of ALF - - 2,331,80 2,331.80
‘Fotal financial instruments measured at fair value « C - - 233EA0 2,331.80
Total {A+B+C) 178.13 - 3,115.40 3.293.53
As gt March 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Financial Assets held for trading
Other debt securities 30.29 - - 50.29

Total financial instruments measurad at fair value - A 3029 - - 50.29

Other financial assets

Security receipis . - £,240.22 1,240.22
Tetal fimancial instruments measured at fair value -B - - 1,240.22 1.240.22
Other financial assets

Units of AIF . - 300.76 300.76
Total financial instruments measured o1 fir value - C - - 300.76 300.7¢

Total (A+B+C) 50,09 - 1,540.98 138137




Valuation Techniques:

Delit Securities

Whilst mest of these instruments are standard fixed mte securities, however nifty linked debentures have embedded derivative chamaeteristics. Fair
value of these mstruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing in the market as a1 the reporting date. Company has
used quoted prive of national stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. In ¢ases where debt seeurities are not activity fraded Company has
used CRISIL Corporate Bond Valuer model for measaring fair value.

Security Receipts

The market for these security receipts is not active. Therefore, the Company uses valuation techniques to measure their fair values. Since the sceurity
receipts are less liguid instruments therefore they are valued by discounted cash flow models. Expected cash flow kevels are estimated by using
quantiistive and qualitative measures regarding the characteristics of the wnderlying assets ingluding prepaymemt rates, default rates and ather
economic drivers. Scourities reeeipts with significant unobservable valuation inputs are classified as Level 3

There have heen no transfers between Ievels during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

The following table shows a reconciliadion of the opening halances and the closing halances for fair value measurements in
Level 3 of the fokr value hierarchy.

Financial year ended March 2023 Sccurity Receipts Units of AIF Taotal
Investments - ut Aprit 1, 2022 1,240.22 300.76 1,540.98
Purchase 622,17 2,367.58 2,989.75
Sale/Redemption praceeds (1,074.73) (288.24) (1,362.97}
Profit for the year recognised in prefit or loss (4.05) (48.30) (52.35)
Investments - at March 31, 2023 783.61 2.331.80 3,11540
nrcalised gain{Loss) reiated to balances held at the end of the year (4.63) (48.30) (52.35)
Financial year cnded ¥arch 2022 Security receipts Units of AIF Total
Investments ~ at Aprii 1, 2021 T708.11 249.80 95701
Turchase 694.08 5282 T46,90
Sale/Redewption proceeds (161.57} {1.86) {163.83)
Prefit for the year recegnised in prefit or loss - - -
Inveséments - at March 31, 2022 1.240,22 200.76 1.540.98

Unrealised gain{Loxs) related (o balances held at the end of the year - . -
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51, Fair Valoe messurcment:

G. mpact on fair vatue of level 3 ficancial Enstrument of changes to key unebservalie inputs
The below tablz summrises the vatuaion rechngques together with the sipnificant unobservuble inpats used to caleulate the fair sufue of the Company’s Level 3 1 ie izs recetpts. The range of valuss indicates

the Inghest and lowest level input wied in the valuaton technique and, as such, onty reflzcis the churactenstics of the instruments as oppexedd to the fevet of uncertainty 1o their valuation. Refationships Between untobservable
inputs have ot been incorporated in this summary

Type of Finanelal Fair value of Significant unobservahle Range ol estimates Increase in the Change In falr Pecreass fn the Cliange in [air
Instruments assat as on 31 Vateation tochuiques Input for unobservable unobservable input value unghservalile Input value
March 2023 P imput P : ”
5% increase in %% Decrease in
Discounted Cash flow. The present value  Expected future cash flows 78609 Expected funaee Cash 3369 Expected future (33.69)
- : af expecied futute ecanomic benzfits to ha flow Cash flaw
Sceunly Receipts (SR) 73361 derived fom the owpsrship of the o5 — 0.5% Decresse in
undetlying investments of the Trust. Risk-adjusted discount tats 12,003, o7 increase in Biske (3.48)  Risk=adjnsied 3.51
adjusied discount rate i
iscount rale
Fair value of undeelyin 5% Increase in Fair 5% Inerease in Falr
Uhits of AIF 2,331.80 Net Asset approach st ‘S" Hing 2,33080  value of Underlying 659 valae of Undalying (116.59)
mesmen Investment Investment
S Fair value of . . ’ Range of estimates S o in PR PPN
Type of Financial assct a5 om 31 Valuation technigues SIB‘IiﬂCaH-I unobservable fur unobscvable Increase in Eh. Ch:m_g,c in fair Decrease m‘th.. Change in fair
Tnstruments input . unobsenvable input valux unobservable input valic
Mareh 2022 input
%% herease in. %49 Pecrease in
Discounted Cash flow. The present value  Expecied fimire cash flows 7,355.23  Expected future Cash 3151 Expected fuwre (3151
Security Receipts 1.240.27 ufrxpc::lcd future economic 'b'cncl’ns tobe Tew Cash fiow
derived from the ownership of the 0.5 Decroase in
P 3 . P 544 Decrea
underlylng investoents of he Thust—— poy - osted discount rate 12,067 O3°sinerease in Risk (0.55)  Risk-adjusted 0.56
adjusted discount rale .
diseount rate
Fuit value of underlyin 5% Inerease in Fair 5% Inceease in Fair
Units of AIF 300,76 Wet Asset appraach B m;‘(’m:;' e 300.76  value of Underlying 1504 value of Underlying 15 64)

Investment Investment
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50.2.

503

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The fallowing lzble sels aut the fair values of Fnancial instraments not measured at fair value and analysing them by the level in the fair value hierarchy
into which each fair value measurement is categorised,

As on March 31,2023 Tetal Carrying Total fair value Level k Level 2 Level 3
Amcunt

Financial assets

Loans 5,443.67 4,991.20 - - 4,991.20

Total 5.443.67 4,$91.20 - - 4.991.29

Finsncial linbilities

Debi secarities 889.88 906.13 - 906.13 -

Subordinated lisbilities 2,190.66 2,214.11 - 2,214.11 -

‘Total 3,080.48 392023 - 3.120.23 -

As on March 31, 2032

Financial asscts:

f.oans 10,236.43 9,605.89 - - 4,603.5%
Total £0,236,43 2.603.89 - - 9.603.89
Financiat liabililies

Debt securities 2,804.43 3,131.63 - 3,131.63 -
Subordinated liabilities 2,155.18 2,182.55 - 2,182.55 -
Total 4,957,61 5.314.18 - 5=.314.18 -

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financiaf instruments which are not recorded and
measured at fair value in the Company’s financial statements. These fair values were caleulated for disclosure purposes only. The below
methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instuments in the above tables and, as such, may differ from the techniques and assumptions
explained in netes,

Short term linzncial assets and linbilities

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity {Iess thun twelve months), the carrying amounts are a reasenable
approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: Trade receivables, trade payables and contract liability without a specific maturity.
Such amounts have been classified as Level 2 on the basis that no adjustments have been made to the balances in the balance sheet. Cash and
cash equivalent and Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents have been classified as Leve] 1.

Financial asscts at amortised cost

The fair values of financial assets measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flaw medel based on contractual cash
flows using aciual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties” credit risk. In case of floating interest rate
linked loans, since such foans are subject to repricing periodicufly (less than twelve months), with the interest rate reflecting current market
price. Hence carrying value of loans is deemed 1o be equivalent of fair value.

Issued debt
The fair value of issued debt is estimated by a discounted cash flow model Incorporating the Company's ewn eredit risk.

Financial liabilitics at amortised cost

The fair values of financial labilities measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow mode] based on contractual cash
flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yiclds. In case of floating interest rate linked borrowings, since such borrowings are
subject to repricing periodically (fess than twelve months), with the interest rate reflecting current market price. Hence catrying value of such
berrowings is deemed to be equivalent of fair value.
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51, Trade receivables

Pruovision matrix for Trade reeeivables

Particulars

ECL rate

As at
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

Trade receivables days past
due

Estimated total gross carrying
amount at defaukt

ECL - Simplified approach
Nct carrying amount

Estimated total gross carrying
amount at default

ECL - Simplified appreach
Net carrying amount

_ more than
1-90days 91-180 days 181-365 days 365 days Total

1.39% 14.87% 67,15% 100.00%

35.69 0.00 06 0.65 36.41
(0,56} (0.00) {0.04) (0.65) (1.1%)
35,19 0.00 0.02 0.00 3521
19.91 .06 .02 014 20.13
(0.33) {0.61) (G.01) 0.14)  (0.49)
19.58 0.05 0,02 (0.00)  19.64
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52, Details of the loan taken from Banks ant other parties
Nalture of Secarity and terms of repayment for s¢eured borrowings
All Secured long term borrowings are secured by way of iypothecation of receivables i.e.Joans & advances.
{a)  Details of term Joan taken from Banks {excluding of Interest acerued on Term loans and EIR impact)

As at March 31 2023

Rate of Inerest
Month of Maturity/Repayment < 10% >10% Grand Total
January-25 - 12,50 12.50
December-24 - 12.50 12.50
November-24 - 12.50 12.50
October-24 - 12,50 T2.50
September-24 - 12.50 12.50
Aupgust-24 - 12.50 12.50
July24 - 12.50 12,50
June-24 - [2.50 12,50
May-24 - 12,50 12.50
April-24 - 12.50 12.5¢
March-24 - 12.50 12.5¢
February-24 - 12,50 12.50
January~24 - 12.50 12.50
December-23 - 12.50 12.50
November-23 - 12.50 12.50
October-23 - 12.50 12.50
September-23 - 12.50 12.50
Angust-23 - 12.50 12.50
July-23 - 12.50 12.50
June-23 - 1250 12.50
May-23 - 12.50 12.50
April-23 - 12.50 12.50
Total - 275.00 275.00
As at March 31 2022

(b) Motk of Maturity/Repayment s lofate of Interast T Erond Tom
March-2023 14.62 80.69 9531
December-2022 75.90 140.61 216.51
September-2022 153.13 196.88 3590.00
Juiy-2022 - 31.25 31.25
June-22 153.13 196.88 350.00
May-1022 - 18.75 18,75
April-2022 17.86 3125 49.11
Total 414.63 696.31 1,1190.93
Details of term loan taken fram SIDBI {exclading of Interest ncerued on Term loans and EIR impact)
As at March 31 2023
Month of Maturity/Repayment Rate of Interest
160.00% to 10.99% [Grand Total
Marche24 - -
December-23 - -
September-23 - -
June-23 - -
April-23 - -
Total - -
Details of term loan aken from SIDBI (excluding of Interest accrued on Term Joans and EIR impact} {continued)
As of 31st March-23 ended SIDBI loan repaid since no balances
Ag ot March 31 2022
Moenth of Maturity/Repayment
521 Rate of Inerest
10.00% to 10.96% | Grand Total

Mar-2023 52.50 52,50
Dece-20622 32.50 52.50
Sep-2022 52.50 52.50
Jan-2022 £2.50 5250
Apr-2022 29.00 $4.00
Total 29900 299.00
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53 Repaymeat ferms of Secured Non-convertible Debentures nre as follow:

The debentures are secured by way of pari passu charge on an immovable property and standard loan assets to the extent of 1009 of the
auistanding amount of the debentures, unless atherwise stated.

As at March 31 2023

Description of Seeured Redeemablie Non

Convertikils Debeatures (NCD) Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No. of NCDis Ampung*
ERFL/Pulilic NCD/Series VI 9.25%  12-Mar-2018 22.Mar-2028 4,83,173 483.17
ERFL/Public NCD/Serics V 8.88%  22-Mar-2018 22-par-2028 4,09,205 400.2§
892.38
As at Mareh 31 2022
g:;izz:‘hol: Bii‘:::;:f:z&dgcp?ahlc Non Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No. of NCDs Amaunt*
ERFL/Public NCD/Series VI 925%  22-Mar-2018 22.Mar-2028 4,83,173 483,17
ERFL/Public NCD/Serics V 8.88%  22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2028 4,09,205 409.21
ERFL/Public NCD/Scrics IV 9.00%%  22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2023 6,385,802 438.80
ERFL/Public NCD/Serics I §.65% 22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2023 2,33785 233.79
ERFL/NCD/0TNov22 8.50%  07-Nov-2017 07-Nov-2022 1,000 3,000.00
2.764.97

*Excluding of Iterest accened and EIR impact
54, Repayment terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable subordinate debentures are as follow:

As at March 31 2023

1SIN number Raie Issue Date Redemption Date No. ol NCDs Amount*
INE528508043 %.25%  06-0ct-2017 06-Oct-2027 1,000 1,000.00
INES28508033 9.25%  31-Tul-2017 31-Ful-2027 240 240.00
INE528808027 9.95%  10-Oct-2016 9-0ct-2026 120 120.00
INES2850R019 0.00%  25May-20E5 26-May-2025 140 140.00
1,500.00

As al March 31 2022

[SEN number Ratc Issuc Date Redemption Date No. of NCDs Amount*
[NES28508053 9.25%  06-Oct-2017 06-0ct-2027 1,000 1.600.00
[NES28S08035 9.25%% 3t-Jul-2e17 31-Jul-2027 240 240,00
INESIRS0R027 9.95%% 10-0ct-2016 39-0ct-2026 120 120.00
INES2RS08C19 0.00% 25-Muay-2013 26-May-2025 140 140600
1,500.06

*Excluding af Interest accrued and EIR impact

th
o

. Repaymeat terms of Unsecured non-convertible redeemable perpetual debentures sre 25 follow.

As at March 31 2023

ISIN number Rate Issue Date Redemiption Date No. of NCDs Amoent*

INES528S08050 9.75%  26-Dec-2017 Perpetual 200 200.00

INES2HS0D306H LhG0%  07-Feb-2018 Perpetual 250 250,00
450,60

As at March 31 2022

1SIN number Rate Issue Dale Redemption Dare No, ol NCDs Amount*
INES28508050 9.75%  26-Dee-2017 Perpetual 200 200.00
INE528808068 1.00%  07-Feh-2018 Perpetual

*Exciuding of Interest acorued and EIR impact
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56. Capital Management

{a

(b

—

=

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally
imposed capital requiremems from its regulators and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order (o support ils
business and to maximise sharcholder value,

The Piilars of its policy are as follows:

a) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity across tenure buckels in order to minimize liguidity risk.
b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all it liabilities issuances domestically and internationally by ensuring that the financial
strength of their balance sheets are preserved.

¢) Manage financial market osks arising from Interest rate, equity prices and minimise the impacr of marker volatility on camings.
d) Leverage optimally in erder to maximise sharehoider returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of balance sheet.

This [ramewaork is adjusied based on underlying macro-economic faclors affecting business environment, financial market
cenditions and interest rares envirpnment

Regulatory Capital

The below regulatory capilal is computed in accordance with RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 « Master Directicn DNBR. PD
008/03.10.:19/2016-17 September 01, 2016 (updated time to time) read with RB1/2019-20/170 DOR
{NBFC).CC.FD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 - Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards dated March 13, 2020 issued by
Reserve Bank of India or Ind AS financial statements,

As at As at
Particulars Narch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Capital Funds
Common Equity Tierl (CET1) capitai 5,376.21 2,106.88
“Other Tier 2 capital instruments (CET2) 1,252.03 £,083.35
Total capital 6,068.23 3,190.23
Risk weighted assels 9,228.94 8,644.62
CET} Capiral raaio 58.25% 24.37%%
CET2 Capital rativ 14.00% 12.53%

Total Capital ratio 72.25% 36.90%
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57

6]

(i)

Other Disclosures

Details of dues to micro enterprise and small enterprise

Trade Payables includes Nil (Previous Year Rs.0.89 miliion) payable to “Suppliers” repistered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006. Interest paid by the conpany during the year te “Suppliers” regisiered under this Act i3 Nil (Previous year: Rs.0.06 million). The aforementioned is based on the

responses received by the company te its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act.

Disclosure under regulation 53(f) of SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Particulars

Loans to advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries
Loans to advances in the nature of loans to associates

company has made a loans & advances in the nature of loans

Loans to advances in the nature of {oans o firms/companies in which directors are interested

Investenent by the once in the share of parents company and subsidiary corspany, when the

Asat
March 31, 2023

As a3
March 31, 2022

Relationship with Struck off Companies

Below are the transactions with the companias struck off under section 248 of Companies Acl, 2013 or section 580 of Coripanies Act, 1956

Namo of the struck off company Nature of transactions |Relationship with Balance outstanding |Balance outstanding as
with struck-off the Struck off company, |as on March 31, 2623 |on March 31, 2022
Company if any, to be disclosed

MEDIFIT HEALTH & FITNESS FRIVATE LIMITED _ [Recaivables Nona 0.44 -

Zedpack Pyt Lid Recejvables Nena - 0.01

Shelz india Pviitd ﬁeceivables Nona - 0,02

Tatal
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57. Other Disclosures

{v) Disclosure of Ratios

51 Me. Tarticulars March 31,2023 March 31.2022
1 Debt-equily Ratip 2! 0.86 135
2 Debenture redemption reserve {Rupees in Crores) .24 6.78
3 Net worth (Rupees in Crores) " "% 533.00 497.02
4 Net profit affer tax {Rupees in Crores) 1779 18.47
5 Earnings per share (oot annualised}
5.2 Basic {Rupees) 6.47 4.30
5b Diluted (Rupees) 6.47 4.30
b Total debis to total assets “ ™ 0.44 0.53
7 Net profit margin (%) "% 21.59% 10.47%
8 Sector specific equivalent ratios as or: March 31, 2023
{a) Capital 10 risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) (%} T2.25% 36.50%
(b} Tier I CRAR (%%) 58.25% 24.37%
(¢) Tier Il CRAR (34) 14.00% 12.53%
(d) Slage 3 ratio (gross) (%5) TIT S 2.81% 231%
(e) Stage 3 ratio {net) (%) "= ® 217% 1.82%
9 Liquidity coverage ratio™™* "’ N.A N.A

The company being a retail finance company, disclosure of current ratio, long term debt to working capital, Bad debls to Account receivable ratio, Current
liability ratio. Debtors turnover. Inventory turnover. Operating margin are not applicabie

b =

. Debi-equity Ratio = Total Debt (Debt Securities + Borrowings {other than debt securities) + Subordinated Liabilities+ Securitisation fiability) - Net worth

Met worth = Share capital = Share application money pending allotment = Reserves & Surplus — Deferred Tax Asseis

. Total debts to 1o1al assets = Total Debt / Total assels
. Net profit margin (%) = Net profit after {ax / Revenue from (Operations

3
4
5.
6
7

Stage 3 ratio {gross) = Gross Stage 3 loans © Gross Loans

. Stage 3 ratio {net) = (Gross stage 3 loans - impairment loss allowance for Stage 3) * Gross Loans
. As per RBI guidelines on Liguidity Risk Management Framework, all non-deposit taking NBFCs with asset size of Rs, 5,000 crore shali maintain the

required level of Liquidity coverage ratio (L.CR) starting December 1, 2020 in phased manner from 30% to 100% by December 1, 2024. As at March 31,
2023. the Company's asset size is less thar Rs. 5,000 crores and hence minimum LCR maintenance is not mandatory for the Company.
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57.  Other Disclosures
(iv) Disciosure Large Corporate as per the applicability criteria given under the SEBI circular SEBV/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26, 2018,

Initiai Disclosure to be made by an entity identified as a Large Corporate

Sr. Mo Particulars Details
1 Name of the company EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED
CIN U67120MH1997PLC285490
3786.07

2
3 Outstanding borrowing of company as on March 31, 2023
4 As per Table 1 below

Highest Credit Rating During the previous FY along with name of the Credit Rating
Agency

3 Name of Stock Exchange in which the {ine shall be paid, in case of shortfall in the BSE LIMITED
required borrowing under the frammework
Table 1
Product Credit Rating Name of Rating Agency
Bank Bomrowings [ICRA] A+/Stable ICRA Limited
Commercial Papers CRISIL Al+ CRISH.
Cominercial Papers CARE Al+ CARE Limited
Long Term Sub-Debt CRISIL AA-/Stable CRISIL
Leng Tenn Sub-Debt {ICRAJ A+/Stable ICRA Limited
Long Term Sub-Debt CARE A+/Stable CARE Limited
Long Term NCD CARE A+/Stable CARE Limited
Eong Tenn-NCDP CRISIL AA-/Negative CRISIL
Long Term-NCD BWR AA-/stable Brickwork Ratings
Long Term-NCD [ICRA] A-+/Stable ICRA Limited
Perpetual - Debt BWR A+/stable Brickwork Ratings
Perpetual - Debt ACUITE A+ ACUITE Ratings
Perpetual -~ Debt CRISIL A+ CRISIL
(iv)  Details of incremental borrowings during the year ended March 31, 2023
Particulars Details
2-year block period FY 2022-23, FY 2023.24
Incremental borrowing done in FY (a) 300
Mandatory borrowing to be done through issuance of debt securities (25% of a) = {b) 75
Actual borrowings done through debt securities in FY {¢) 0
Shortfall in the mandatory berrowing through debt securities, if any (b} - (¢) = (d)
{If the calculated valuc is zero or negative, write "nil"} 0
Quantum of (d}, which has been met from (c) (e} 0
Shortiall, if any, in the mandatory borrowing through debt securities for FY 2022-23{afler
adjusting for any shortfall in borrowing for FY 2021-22 which was carried forward to FY 2022-
23} () =(b)-[{c}-(e)] 75
V) Details of penalty to be paid, if any, in respect to previcus vear ended Masch 31,2022
Details

Particulars

2-year block period

Amount of fine to be paid for the block, il applicable Fine = (1.2% of {{d)-(e)}

FY 2021-22, FY 2022.23
Nij
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57. Other Disclosures

{vi) Repistration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC}

No charges or satisfaction yet te be registered with RGC beyond the statutory peried by the company.

(vii) Compliance with number of Fayers of companies

The provision of this act shall not be applicable as the company is a non-banking financial company as ¢efined in the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 {2 of 1934} which is registered with the Reserve Bank of India and considered as systemieally imporzant
ron-bunking financial company by the Reserve Bank of India as per the excepiions prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the
Act read with Companics (Restriction on number of Layers} Rules, 2017

(vitl’ Utilisation of Borrowed funds and skare premium:

{ixy

£x

{xi}

(A} During the year, the company has not advaniced or loaned ot invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{ies}, including
forgign entilics (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermedinry shall:

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whaisoever by or on behalfl of the
campany {Uhimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, syearily or the like to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries

(B) During the year, the Company has not received any fund from sny person(s) or entity(ics), including forelpn entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or athenwise) that the Company shall:

(1) direclly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party(Uitimate Beneficiaries) or

{if} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ukimute Beneficiaries

Details of Berami Property held

There are no procecdings which have been initiated or pending against the company far holding any benami property under the
Benami Tronsactions {Prohibition} Act, 1938 {45 of 1988) und rules miade thercunder.

Undisclosed income

The Campany will not hav any 1ransaction which not recorded in the books of accounts thin has been surrendered or diselosed as
ingame during the yest in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Acy, 1961

Reunding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial ststenents and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requircments.
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58, Regulatory Disclesures

(i)  Forecign currency
The Company has not undertaken any foreign currency transaction during the year ended March 31, 2023 (Previcus year: Rs Nil).

(i)  Investments

. . As at As at
Sr.Na |Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Value of Investiments
(i} {Gross value of Investments
(a) In India 3,172.87 1,546.90
(b} Outside India - -
(i) |Provisions for Depreciation
(a) In india (57.47) (5.92)
(b} Outside India . -
(i) [Net value of Investments
{2) In India 3,115.40 1.540.98
{b) Qutside Indis - .
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
(i) Opering balance (5.92) {5.92)
(i) jAdd: Provisions made during the year (51.55) -
(iii) jLess: Write-off / Written-back of excess provisions during the year - -
{iv)__|Closing balance (57.47) (5.97)
(i}  DPerivatives
{a) Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap
Sr. No |Particul Asat As at
r. Ne | Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i} |The notional principal of swap agresmens Nil Nil
(i} [Losses which would be incurred if counterpartics failed to fulfill their obligations under the Nil Nil
agreements
(iif) |Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering into swaps Nil Nil
(iv} IConcentration of credit risk arising fom the swaps® Nil Nil
{v) _|The fair value of the swap baok # Nil Nil

L . - . . . . .
" Examples of concentration could be exposures to particular indusiries or swaps with highly geared compunies.

Note: Nuture and terms of the swaps including information on credit and market risk and the accounting policies adopied for recording the swaps
should also be disclosed.

* If the swaps are linked 10 specific assets, liubilities, or commitments, the fair value would be the estimated amonnt that the applicable NBFC wouid
receive or pay lo terminate the swap agreements as on the balance sheet daie.

{b) Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives

Sr. No (Particulars Amount
(i) | Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year (instrumentwise) Nil
(ii} [Notional principai amount of exchange traded [R derivatives outstanding as on March 31, 2023 (instrument-wise} Nil
(i) | Notional principal amount of exchange {raded IR derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective” (instrument-wise) Nil
(iv) jMark-to-market value of exchange traded R derivatives oststanding and not "kighly cffective” {instrument-wise) Nil
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58. Regulatory Disclosures

(v)

]

(c) Qualitative Disclosures
The Company has a process whereby periadivally all long term contracts are assessed for material fereseeable losses. At the yeur end, the Company has
reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any law / accounting standards for materizl foreseeable losses on such long term centracts has
been made in the books of account. The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts during the year. {Previous year Rs. Nil)

(d) Quzntitative Disclosures

Sr. No |Particulars C‘fn‘c,“t Imcr'esr ?ate
Derivatives Derivatives
(i) |Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) Nil Nil
For hedging Nil Wil
(if) [Marked 1o Market Positions
a) Assct {+) Nil Nil
b) Eiability (-} Nil Nil
{iii} |Credit Exposure Nil Nil
(iv) [Unhedged Exposures Nil Nil
Asset liability management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and linhilities
As at March 31, 2023
i . Advances . Forcign Currency  Foreipn Currency
Bucket: ¥ *
uckets Deposits (Gross) Investments Borrowings Assets Assets
1 day to 7 days - 4962 - 23.63 - -
8 day to 14 days - 14.06 - - - -
15 days to 30/31 days (One month) - 83.77 - 96.40 - -
QOver 1 month upto 2 moenths . 118.86 B 12.50 - -
Qver 2 months upto 3 months - 147134 - 12.50 - -
Over 3 months upto 6 months - 593.97 24.06 5228 B -
Over & months upto § year - 541.59 154.07 473.26 - -
Over 1 year upio 3 years - TH.68 - 413.13 - -
Over 3 years upto 3 years - 363.02 783,61 2,702.38 - -
Over 3 years - 1.635.14 2,331.80 - - -
Total - 5,648.05 3,293.53 3,786.07 - -
*Including securities held for trading
Maturity pattemn of certain items of assets and liabilities
As at March 31, 2022
. . Advances ) " . Forcign Currency Foreign Currency
Buckels Deposits {Gross) Investments Borrowings Assels “Assets
i day to 7 days - 52.82 - - - -
8 day 1o 14 days - 956.76 - 62,44 - -
£5 days to 30/31 days (One maonth) - 281.16 - 129,51 - -
Qver | month upio 2 months - §71.31 13.77 18.75 - -
Over 2 moenths upto 3 months - 480,43 - 402,50 - -
Over 3 menths upto 6 months - 94199 4.50 448.59 - -
Over 6 months upto i year 3,444 82 31,96 2,716.45 - -
Over 1 year uplo 3 years 1,568.75 - - - -
Over 3 years upto 3 years 72.24 1,240.22 371.28 - -
Over 5 years - 2.248.94 300.70 2,582.38 - -
Total - 10,719.22 1,561.27 6,731.90 - -
*Inciuding securities held for trading
Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR)
" Asat Asal
§r.No JParticulars Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
() CRAR (%a) 72.25% 36.90%
(i) CRAR - Tier I capital (%) 58.25% 24.37%
{iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 14.00% 12.53%
(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-1 capital 1.731.84 1.664,54
(Raised during 1he year: Nil, Previous year Nil)
(Discounted value of subordinated debt considered for the purpose of Tier Il capital Rs.
112600 Mn, Previous year Rs, 1,033.99 Mn,)
(v} Amount taised by issue of perpetual debt instruments 458.76 458.64
(Raized during the yeur: Nil, Previous year Nib)
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58. Regulatory Disclosures
(vi) Pircct assignment & Securitisation

{a) Disclosores in the notes to the accounts in respect of securilisation transactiens 25 required undet revised guidelines on securitization transactions issued by RRBI
vide circular no.DNBS. PD,No,301/3,10.01/2012-13 dated August 2, 2012

Sr, No

Particulars

As at
March 31,2023

Asat
March 31,2022

b P —

No. of 5PV sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions
Tolal amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsared by the NBFC
Total amoumt of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date
of balance sheet
ay Off-balance sheet exposures
« First loss
- Others
b} On-balance sheet exposures
- First Joss
- Others
Amoeunt of exposures to assignment transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i} Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss
- Others
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss
- Others
b) On-balance sheet exposurcs
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss
- Others
if) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss
- Others

P
1,300.54

551.52

106,47
443,05

1
314.47

53.46

2241
3145

*Only the SPVs relating to outstanding sceuritisation transactions may be reported here

(b} Disclosures m the notes 1o he accownts in respect of assignment transactions

Sr. No

Particulars

As at]
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31,2022

1
2

No. of SPVs5 sponsered by the NBFC for assignment transactiens
Total amouat of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC

Talal amount of exposuras retained by the NBFC 1o comply with MRR as on 1he date
of balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
- First joss
- Others
by On-balance sheet exposures
- First loss
- Others
Amount of expesures to assignment transactions other than MRR
a} Off-balance sheet expostres
i} Exposure te own seeuritisations
- First loss
- Others
ii} Exposure to third party sccurilisations
- First loss
« Others
p) On-balance sheet ¢xposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss
- Others
ii} Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss
- Others

62
2,000.12

511.52

511.52

10
1,573.29

194.48
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58. Regulatory Disclosures
(c) Details of Financial Assels sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction during the yvear

For the year ended|  For the year ended
; :
Sr.No (Particulars March31,2023]  March 31, 2022
(i) [Ne. efaccounts 14 25
{ii) |Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts seki to SC/RC 942.55 393.49
(iii) |Aggregate censideration 952,11 370.84
{iv) |Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in carlier years “ -
(v} |Agpregate gain / (loss) over net bock value 39.56 (22.65)
) Details of Assignment transactions undertaken during the year

For the year ended

For tle year ended

—

§r.No Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i) [No. of accounts 2 33
(i} |Aggregate value (net of provisions) ef accounts sold to SC/RC 783.90 3i4.24
(i) |Ageregate consideration 783.90 282.82
(iv} |Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years - -
(V) |Ageregate gain / (3oss) over net book value - (31.42)

Details of Scecuritization transactions undertaken during the year

For the year ended|

For the year ended

§r.No | Particulars March 31,2023]  March 31, 2022
{i) |No.ofaccounts 376 358
(ii} |Aggregate value (aet of provisions) of sccounts sold 166.74 282,82
(iif) |Aggregate consideration 166,74 314.47
(iv) |Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in carlier years - -
(v) | Apgrepate pain f foss over net book value - 35.65
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58.
{vii)

(viii)

Regulatory Disclosures

Details of non-performing financials assets purchased / sold

A, Details of Non performing financial assets purchased:
Sr. For the year| For the year]
Ne |Particulars ended cnded|
March 31, 2023] March 31, 2022
(a) |No. of accounis purchased duzing the year Nil Nil
(b) |Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
(a) |Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year Nif Nil
{b) |Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
B.  Details of Non performing financial assets Sold:
Sr. For the year For the year
No [Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{a) | No. of accounts sold 14 25
(b} { Apgrepate outstanding 942.55 393.49
{c) Aggregate consideration received 982.11 370.84
Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect & exposure to capital market
a) Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect
Sr. Particulars As at Asat
No March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022
A |Direct exposure
(i) |Residentinl mortgages -
Lending fuily secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the 1,171.65 1,480.77
borrower or that is rented
(ii) |[Commercial real estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commerciai real estates (office buildings, retail space, 1,686.93 2,957.30
multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction,
ete),
Investments in Morigage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
- Residential - -
- Commercial real estate - -
B |Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (WHB) and Housing - -
Finance Companics (HFCs)
Total Exposure to Real Estate Scctor 2,858.58 4,438.07
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58. Regulatory Disclosures
b) Expesure to capital market
Sr. N Asat As at
No [Particulars March 31,2023] March 31,2022
i) |direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity- - -
oriented mutugt funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt
iiy |advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for - -
investment in shares (including [POs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and
units of equity-oriented mutual fands
iii) Jadvaneces for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or - 72747
units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security
iv) jadvances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the coliateral security of shares or - -
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutuai funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debeatures / units of equity
oriented mutual funds ‘does not fully cover the advances
v) |secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers - -
and market makers
vi) [toans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities - -
or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in
anticipation of raising resources
vii} |bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues - -
viit) {Underwriting cotnmitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or - -
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds
ix) |Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading
x) [All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds: Category 1 2,331.79 300.76
Total Exposure to Capital Market 2,331.79 1.028.23
(ix) Meovements in non performing advances:
The following tabie scts forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of gross Stage 111 loans, Net Stage Il and ECL
St | particalars As at Asat
No March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022
i)  |MNetNPAs to net advances (%) 2.22% 1.83%
ii}y [Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 248.06 [,561.18
b} Additions during the year 990.04 204.65
¢) Reductions during the year (1,079.64) (3,517.77)
d) Closing balance 158.46 248.06
iii) [Movement of net NPA
&) Opening balance 195.25 1,281.37
b} Additions during the year 909.59 174.50
¢) Reductions during the year (982.06) (1,260.62}
d} Closing balance 122.78 195.25
iv}  |Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provision on Stage I & II loans)
a} Opening balance 52.81 27981
b} Additions during the year 80.45 30.15
¢} Reductions during the year (97.58) (257.15)
d) Closing balance 35.68 52.81
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58.

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

{xiii)

(xiv)

(xv}

Regulatory Disclosures

Details of single borrower limit and group borrower limit exceeded by the Company:

During the year ended 31 March 2023 , the Campany’s ¢redit exposure to singie borrowers and group borrowers were within the limits

prescribed by the RBI, except exposure to befow entities. (Previous year: Nif)

GMR Bannerghatta Properties Private Limited

The above loans was disbursed within the limit of Single Borrower Limit {SBL} and Group Borrower Limit (GBL) as defined in RBI Master
Direction ‘DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - $ystemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 1, 2016 as amended. During the year, the
limit was breached due to change in the basis of the computation of SBL/GBL limit based on the RBI circular RBI/2021-22/112
DOR.CRE.REC.N0.60/03.10.001/2021 on Scale ased Regulation and defined based on net owned fund which was carlier based on owned
fund. The Company has taken the necessary steps o bring down the exposures of above borrower within applicable limit.

Unsecured Advances

The company has not taken any charges over the rights,licences,authorisation etc against unsecured loan given to borrowers.

Fraud Reporting

There were no instances of fraud identified and reported dusing the year (Previous Year Nil) as required in terms of Chapter i paragraph 5 of

Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs {(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

Remuneration of Directors

The company has not entered into any transaction with non-exccutive directars during the year {Previcus Year Rs. Nil) except disclosure

made in table below:
Details of transaction with non executives directors

Name of Directors Nature of transaction For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2023} March 31, 2022
Mr. Vinod Juneja Sitting fees 0.60 .26
Mr. Suni] Phatarphekar Sining fees 0.44 .22

Net profit or loss for the period , prior period items and changes in accounting policy

There are no prior period items (previous year Rs, Nil) and there are no changes in accounting policies during the year.

Details of "provisions and centingencies'

Break up of ‘provisions and contingencies’ shewn under the head expenditure For the year For the year|
in statement of profit and loss. ended ended
March 31, 28623 March 31, 2022
(i) Provisions for depreciation on investment 5747 592
(ii) Provision towards NPA (Stage I1I loans) (17.08) (226.99)
(iii} Provision made towards income tax 12.63 2373
(iv) _Provision for Standard loans (Stage I & 11 loans) (261.38) 83.04
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58. Regulatory Disclosures
(svi) Draw down from Rescrves

The Company has drawn Rs. Nil (Previous Year Nil) from the debenture redemption reserve and transferred fo retained ecamnings on
redemption of debeatures tilt March 31, 2023. Further, pursuant to the amendments in the Companies Act, 2013, debenture redemption
reserve is not required to be created for debentures issued by Non-Banking Finance Companies {including Housing Finance Companies)

regulated by Reserve Bank of India.

(xvii) Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

A) Concentration of Deposits (for deposit taking NBFCs) As at Asat
March 31, 20231 March 3§, 2022
Total Deposits to twenty Jargest depositors NA NA
% of Deposits of tventy largest depositors to total Deposit taking NBFC NA NA
B) Concentration of advances As at Asat
March 31, 2023] Mareh 31, 2022
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 3,033.67 7,060.21
% of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances 53.71% 65.86%
C) Concentration of exposures (includes Off balance sheet exposure)
Total exposures to twenty fargest borrowers / customers 3,141.83 7,060.21
% of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total Exposure 54.51% 65.53%
D) Concentration of NPAs
Total exposures to top four NPAs 115.18 94.33
E) Intra group exposures Asat As at
March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022
i)  Total amount of intra-group exposures 480.87 3,655.73
i} Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 480.87 3,655.73
iii}  Percentage of intra-group exposures 1o total exposure of the NBFC on borrowers/customers 5.38% 29.70%
)  Sector-wise NPAs As at As at
% of NPAs to total advances in that sector March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022
1 Agriculture & allied activities 0.00% 0.00%
2 MSME 1.88% 7.81%
3 Corporate borrowers 0.58% 1.42%
4 Services 2.13% 0.3%%
5  Unsecured personal loans 0.006% 0.00%
6  Auto loans 0.00% 0.00%
7 Dther personal loans 13.74% 6.29%
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58. Regulatory Disclosures

G)  Sector-wise loans breakup
As on March 31, 2023 As on March 3§, 2022
Total Gross NPAs % of Gross Total Gross NPAs % of Gross
Sectors Exposure* NPAs to total |  Exposure® NPAs to total
exposure in exposure in
that sector that sector
1 Agriculture and Allied Actiy 48.03 “ - 60.09 - -
2 Industry (Micro and Small{  3,690.50 116.47 3.16% 2,862.73 200.60 7.01%
2.1 Micro and Small 452.89 67.60 14.9% 979.28 91.59 9.4%
22  Medium 37.18 - 0.0% 19532 3377 17.3%
23 Targe - - - - - -
2.4 Others 3,200.43 48.87 1.5% 1,688.14 75.25 4.5%
3 3. Services 1,478.66 3148 2.13% 7,011.62 27.10 0.39%
3.1 Transport Operators - - . - - -
3.2 Computer Software - . - - - -
3.3 Tourism, Hotels and Restaura 324.93 - . 159,81 0.27 -
3.4 Shipping 10.01 - - 8.97 - -
3.5 Professional Services 483.09 8.32 1.7% 688.35 4,10 0.6%
3.6 Trade 157.46 0.74 0.5% 145.08 1.59 1.1%
3.6.1 Whotesale Trade (Other than 2.64 0.32 12.2% 12.56 0.29 2.3%
3.6.2 Retail Trade 154.82 0.42 0.3% 132.52 1.30 1.0%
3.7  Commereial Real Estate - - N 149.22 - -
3.8 Non Banking Fiancials Comp - - . 259.16 - -
3.9  Aviation 21.78 - - 22,70 - -
3.10 Other Services 481.39 2241 4.7% 5,377.34 21.13 04%
4. Personal Loans 430.85 10.51 2.4% 784,78 2036 2.59%
Housing (Including Priority - - . . - -
4.1 Sector Housing)
4.2 Consumer Purabley - - - - - -
4.3 Credit Card Qutstanding - - - - - -
44  Vehicle Loans - - - - - .
4.5 Education . - - - - .
4.6 Advances against Fixed - - . . - -
Deposits
4.7 Advances to Individuals = _ . _ R .
against share, honds, ete,
4.8 Loans against gold jewellery . - - - - .
4.9  Micro finance loans / SHG log - - - - - -
4.10 Other Retail Loans 430,85 1051 2.4% 784.78 20.36 2.6%
5 Others, if any (Please specif] - - - - - .
Total 5,648.05 158.46 2.81% 10,719.22 248.06 2.31%

*includes on balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposure
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58. Regulatory Disclosures

{(xvili) Customer complaints

1) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFECs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

Far the year For the year
Particulars ended| cnded
March 31, 2023} March 31, 2022
1} Compliants received by the NBFC from its custonmers
1 No.of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
2 No. of complaints received during the year 100 118
3 No. of complaints redressed during the year 98 I8
3.1 Ofwhich, number of complians rejected by the NBFC 4 -
4 No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 2 -
5 Number of Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from office of the 17 13
Omnbudsman
3.1 O35, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Qffice of Ombudsman 17 13
3.2 Of 5, mumber of complaints resolved through conciliationfimediation/advisories issued by - -
Office of Ombudsman
3.3 OF 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Qffice of Ombudsman - -
against the NBFC
6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those - -
appealed)
2) ‘Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers
Grounds of Number of Number of % increase/ Number of Of 5, number
complainfs complaints complaints  decrease inthe  compiaints of
pending aft received number of  pending at the complaints
the during the complaints  end of the year pending beyond
beginning year received over 30 days
of the previous
the year year
i 2 3 4 5 [
FY2022-23
Loans and advances - 100 85% 2 2
FY2021-22
Loans and advances - 118 157% 0% -
* Growunds of complains are basis an the grounds as specified in Scale Based Regulntions issued by the Reserve Bank of India.
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Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued}

{Crurrency : Indian rupees in millions)

58,

Regulatory Disclosures

(xix) Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencies

()

(a)

As at March 31, 2023

Instrument category CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickoworks Acuite
i) :
LT-NCD, LT - LT-NCD, LT - .
Long term instruments Sub Debt and  Sub Debt and LT'IECES"S}T B LE-D«C:; :r:"t Perpetuak Debt
Perp-Deht BLR b De erp-ue
Rating cmsg, Ad- ICRA CARE BWR AA-& ACUITE
A+Negative A+/Stable A+/Negative At/MNegative A+/Negative
Amount 6360.00 30101.70 825000 150100 1006.00
ii)  Short term instruments CPs-8T CPs-8T
Rating CRISIL Al+ NA CARE A1+ NA NA
Amount 500,00 NA, SQ00.00 NA NA
(h) the migration of ratings during the year are given below:
(i) Acuite revised the long term rating A+ from AA- on 5th August 2022,
(ii) Brickwork changed the outiook Stable to Negative on 10th October 2022,
(iify CARE revised the outlook Negative from Stable on 06th Octaber 2022.
(iv) ICRA changed the outlook Negative to Stable on 24th June 2022,
As at March 31, 2022
Instrument category CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickworks Brickwaorks Acuite
LT-NCD, LT - L¥-NCD, LT - -
i} Long tenm instruments Sub Debland  SubDebtand el 3d LT - LT-NCD Perpetual Debt TPerpetual Debt
Sub Debnt
BLR BLR
CRISILAA-— ICRA (. REAviSuble BWRAA-smble BWRA+suble  “CULIEAA-
Rating Mepative A+/Negative /Negative
Amount 1,202.00 3,026.17 525.00 50.00 100.00 10600
i)  Short term instruments CPs-ST CPs-5T
Rating CRISIL Al+ NA CARE Al+ NA NA NA
Amount 200.00 NA 500.00 NA NA NA

(b} The migration of ratings during the year are nil.
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58.  Regulatory Disclosures
{xx)  Bisclosare of Restevetured Accounts
(as required by RBI guidelines under reference DNBS. CO. PD. No. 367/ 03.10.01 / 2013-F4 dated January 23, 2014 read with RBI circular RBI2019-28/160 DOR.No.BP.BC.34/2£.04.048/2019-20 dated February 11, 2020 & RBI2020-21/17
BORNo.BP.BCH2L04.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020).
Type of Restruetnring Uriler CDR Mechani: Under SME Delt Restructuring Mechs Others Tatnl
Sr No|Assel Classilication Sub- Sub- Sub- Sub-
Dctails Standard] sinedacid | Doubtfu] Loss | Total { Standard| standard |Doubtfu| Loss | Total § Standard { stapdard | Doubtiud] Loss Total Standard | standard | Doubtiul| Loss Taotal
I |Restructuresd accounts 25 on Ist April, |No. of borrowers - - - . _ - - - - - 52 1 - - 9% 52 16 - - 98
2022 (Opening figures) (refer note 1) |[Amount outslanding - - - - - - - - - - 1,976.98 69.19 - - 2,046.17 1,976.98 £9.19 - - 204617
Pravision thergon - - « - - . - - - - 194.56 15.43 - - 2149 199.56 1543 - - 214.99
2 |Fresh restructuring Juring the year No, of borrowers - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - “ ,
{refer note 2) Amount oulstanding - - - - - - . . N “ N - . . . _ - - _ ~
Provision thereon - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
3 |Upgradatians of restructured accaunts |No. of borrowers - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
o Standard category Amount autstanding - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - N N . _ N
Provision tlierean B N . - - B H - - B - - B - - - - - - -
4 |Restructured advances which ceases to No. of b
atiract higher provisiouing and/ ogf N0 OF borrOwers * - - - - - - - - -
0 - -
additional sisk weight authe end of the (1) Sl ) 2 6 4 L 22
finaneial year and heice need not bej Amount outstanding - - - - - - - . . - 942,47 5
shown as  restmetured  standard (982471 (19453} (3L0yy| - (1,208.08) (982.4T) (194.53) (3109 - {1,218.08)
advances at the bepinning of the nexy| Provision thereon _ . . . _ N _ _ _ _
finanetal year (106.08){  (13.06) @Goanl - (123,12 (106,08}  (13.06) 397y - (123.12)
5 |Downgradations of restructured No, of borrowers - - - - - - - - - " {5) 1 4 - - (5) 1 4 - -
accounts during the £Y Amnount oulsiznding “ - - - - - - - - B (250.10)| 213.24 3686 - 14.00 (250hE0)| 213,24 36,86 - .00
Trovision thercon - - - ~ - -~ - - - - (22.53) 16.38 6,15 - - (22.53) 1638 6.15 - -
6 | Wrile-ofTs of resiructured accounts Nu. ofborrowers - - - - - - - - - . {18) (8) - u (26} (18) () - - (26)
during the FY 22-23 >=E=H.= outstanding - - - - - - - - - - (25.35) (7.00) - - {32.35) (25.35) (7.00) “ - (32.35)
Trovision hereon N N N A - N N . N B (1070 (5.5 N ~ (16.57) (0.72)]  (585) N A 16.57)
7 {Restructured accounts as on 31st Mar, |No. ofborrowers - - - - - “ - - - - 43 5 2| - L) 43 5 2| - 50
2023 (Closing ligures) Atnount vlistanding - “ - - - - - - - - 719.06 80,90 58| - B05.73 710.06 #0.90 578 | - R05.73
Trovision thereon - - -~ - - - - - - - 60.22 12.89 2.18 - 7530 60.22 1289 PRt - 7530
MNote :

t. Excluding the gores of

2. Amount autstanding of fresh restructuring during the year is the amount outstanding as on the date of restructuring,

3. The above table excludes Lhe recoveries made on restruetured o

. Above disclosure alse includes loun nccounts which are restructured under R131 cireular on "Micra, Smali and Medium Enterp

classificahon under ind AS.

oM,

rilard Restructured Advances which do not attract higher provisioning ar risk weight (ilapplicable)

iscs (MSME) sccior - Restructuring of Advances' dated January §, 2019 which ore reflecting under 'Sub-Standnrd {i.e. Stage (i) category s per




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2022 (Consinuedy

(Currency : indian rupees in millicns)

S8, Repubstory Disclosires

(ax)  Disclnsuee of Restractured Accounts
{as required by BI guidedines msder reference DNBS. CO. PD. No. 367/ 03.10.01 / 2013-14 dated January 23, 2084 read witk RBE circulsr RBI2019-20/160 DORNu.BP.BC.24/2E.64.048/2019-20 dated Fehruary 11, 2020 & RBI/2620-21/17
DORNo.BP.BCM/Z114.048/2020-21 dated Angust 6, 2020),
Type of Restructuring Under CDR Mechanism Uader SME Debt Restructuring Mechanism Others Tatal
Se No|Assel Classification Sub- Sul- Sub- Sub-
Netails Standard| standard | Doubtful Loss § Tolal [ Standard standacd |Doulbifu| Loss | Total | Standard | standard | Doubtfut| Loss ‘Fotal Standard | standaxd | Doubtful| Loss Total
1 |Restructurcd accounts as on 1s¢ April, [No. ofborrowers - - - - - B - - - - 55 7 - - 62 35 7 - . 62
2021 (Cpening figures) (refor note 1) | Amaunt outstanding - - - - - - - - - - 1.054.49 92.31 - - 1.146.80 | 1,054.49 92,31 - - L.146.80
Provision thereon - - - - - - - - - - 121.61 16.58 - - 139.59 123.01 16,58 - - 139.59
2 {Fresh restructuring during the yenr No. of borrewers - - - B - - - - - - 56 - - - 56 13 N N _ 56
(refer nate 2) Amount outsianding u - - - - - - - - - 740,89 - B - T40L89 74089 - - - 740,89
Provision thercon - - - - - - - - - - 47.06 - - - 47.06 47.06 - - - 47.06
3 [Upgradations of restructured accounts |No. ol borrawers - - - - - - - - - - 1 {1} - - - 1 [4))] - - -
to Standard cutegory Amount vutstanding - - - - - - - - - - 7082 1 (7082) - - - T0.82 [« 7082 - - -
Provision iherean - - - - - - - - - - 587 (U.H7) - - - 5,87 |- 9.7 - - -
4 {Restructured advances which eeases o) No. of b
; disioni 0, of borrowers - - - - - - - - - -
attract  higher provisioning and/ or ) _ _ B () ) _ - B (%)
Al t outstanding - - - - . - - - - - 71.24 A - -
1 e Aot autsfanding 1 o46 17200 | m124]  0se .- 17210
standar
m_.__iﬁm.nw at the beginping ef the next Provision thercon . _ _ . N . - . - B 34.19 3.42 - -
{nanciat year 37.6) 34.19 3.42 - - 37.61
5 |Downgradations of restructured No. ol berrowers - - - - B - - - - - (3 13 - - - [{E3) 13 - - -
accounts during the FY Amnunt outstanding . - - - - - - - - - (5175 5L71 - - - (51714 51.7% - - -
Travision theresn “ - - - - - - N - - “.10) .10 - - - |- CAT) 9,10 - . N
6 Write-ofis of restructured aceounts No. of borrowers - - - - - - - - - - [ (3) - - (12) )] 3) - - (12)
during the FY 21.22 Amount outstanding - - - - - - - - - - (8.75) (4.87) “ - (13.62) (8.75) {4.87) - - (13.62)
N N _ ~ - - . " . - (54 (3.80) - - (9.27) (547 (3.80) - - (9.27)
7 [Restructured aceounts as on 3 ist Mar, - - - - - - - - - - §2.00 16,00 - - 28.0¢ 32.00 16.00 - - 95.00
2022 (Clysing { Amount outstanding " - - - - - - - - - 1.976.98 69.19 - - 2,046.17 197698 69.19 - - 2.046.17
Provision thercon - - - - - - - - " - 199.56 1543 - - 214,99 199.56 15.43 " - 214.99

Note :

1. Tixeluding the figures of Standard Restructured Advances which do not attract higher provisioning or risk weight (it applicab
nding of lresh restructuring during the year is the amount outstanding a5 on the date of restructuring.
above table excludes the recoveries made on gestruetured aceounts,
. Above disclosure also includes loan accounts which rre restractared under RBI cieculir s "Micra, Snanll and Medium Grterprises (MSMIE) sector - Restruetaring of Advances dated Jangary 1, 2019 which are rellecting under ‘Sub-Standard (i.e. Stage LI} vategory as per

2. Amount ol
3.

classification under Ind AS
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Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 3%, 2023 (Continned)

{Curreney : Indian rupees in millions)

58.

(xxi)

{xxii)
(xxiii}
{xxiv)

{xxv)

{xxvi)

Regulatory Disclosures

Miero, Smalt and Mediwin Enterpriscs (MSME) sectar — Restructuring of Advances
(as required by RBI guidelines under reference RBI/2018-19/109 DBR,Ne.BP.BC,18/21,04.048/2018-1% dated January 01, 2019

Particulars

For the year cnded

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No of accounts restructured 38 77
Amouzt (Indian rupees in millions) 582,90 §80.40

Repistration obtained from other finzncial sector repulators - Nil {Previous Year - Nil)

Detail of Nnancing parents company products -Nil (Previous Year - Nil)

Disclosure of penakties imposed by RBI and other regulatars - Nil (Previous Year - Nil)

Ovwaership Oversens Assets (for those with joint ventures and subsidiarics abroad)

There are ne overseas assets dwned by the company (Previous year Nif)

Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financiak Company

Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company as required in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial
Company- Systematically Impaortant Nen-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

Liabilities side:

Amount outstanding

Amount overdue

3) Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other asscts counting
tewards AFC activities

a) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(i) Financial lease
(i3} Operating lease

b) Stock on hite including hire charges wikler suidry debtors
{i} Assets on hirg
(ii} Repossessed assets

c} Other loans counting towards assel financing Company activities
(i) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(if} Other loans

Particelars As at Asat As at Asay
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1) Loans and advances avaifed by NBFC inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid
{a) Dcbentures:
{other than those falling within (ke meaning of Public deposit)
(1) Secured 88%.88 2,804.43 - -
(i} Unsegured 2,190,460 2,153.18 - -
"¥(b) Deferred credits - - - -
(c) Term loans 266.39 £,400.18 - -
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - - - -
() Commercial paper - - - -
() Other loans - - - -
41 Loan frem relmed panies 0.17 - - -
{ii) Bank overdraft 355,76 37411 - -
{iify Inter Corporate Deposits 83.28 - - -
Assets side:
2) Break up of loans and advances including bills receivables
{other than those included in {3} below)
(a) Sccured 3,160.67 6,028.04 - -
(b) Unsecured 148738 4.691.18 - -
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Notes to the financial statements for year ended Murch 31, 2023 (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupecs in mitlions)

58. Regulatery Disclosures

Note 10 the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking noa-banking financial Company 25 required in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial
Company- Systematically Important Non.Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company {(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

Partitulars

As at
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

4) Break up of investments

(a) Quoted:
(i) Shares: Equity
Preference
{ily Debentures and bonds
iy Units of mutval funds
(iv) Government sceurities
{v) Others

{b) Unquoted:
(i) Shares: Equity
Preference
(i) Debenmres and bonds
(ifi) Units of murual funds
{iv} Govemracnt securities
{v) Others {pass through certificales)

Long-enm iavestments {nel of provision)

{a}) Quoted:
(iy Shares: Equity
Preference
(ii) Debentures and bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Govemnmenl securilies
(v} Gthers

() Unquoted:

{i)  Shares: Equity
Preference

i) Debentures and bonds

4il)  Units of mutual funds

{iv) Govemment seeurities

{v) Others : Pass through cemtificates
Security receipts

Current investments: (including securities held for trading)

Units of Alternative Investments Fung (AIF)

783.61
233179

1,240,22
300,76

5) Bormower group-wise classification of assets financed as in {2) and (2) above

Amount net of provisiens

Sceured

Unseccured

Total

Particulars As at

March 31, 2023

. Related parties**
(a) Subsidiaries -
(b) Companies in the same group -
(c) Other related panies -

2. Other than related parties 305145

Asal
March 31, 2022,

562581

Asat
March 31, 2023

0270

2,085.01

As all
March 31, 2022

3.604.80

1,005.83

As at
March 31, 2023

362,76

3,140.97

As al]
March 31, 2022,

3,604.80

6,631.64

Total 3,051.95

5,025.81

139171

4,610.62

5,443.07

10,236,43

6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long-tenm) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)

Particulars

1) Related parties
{a} Subsidiaries
{b} Companics in the sume group
{c} Other related parties

2) Other than refated partics.

Total

Market value/break up or fair value or

Book value

NAV

{net of provisions}

As at
Mareh 31,2023

§76.61
2,616.82

3,193.53

As at
March 31, 2022

831.63
739.04

March 31, 2023

1.591.27

As at

676.61
2,016.92

3,293.53

Asat
Mareh 31, 2022

851.63
73%.64

1,591.27
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58.

(xxvii}

(xxviii)

(axix)

Regulatory Disclosures

7) Other information

2) Other than related parties

(c) | Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Sr. Particulars As at Asal
No March 31,2023)  March 33,2022
{a} |Gross non-performing assels
1} Related parties - -
2} Other than related parties 158.46 248,06
(b} [Net non-performing assets
1) Related parties - -
12298 195.25

Note :

1. As defined in paragraph 2(1)(xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Compnay Accepiance of public deposits{Reserve bank) Direction, 1698,

Disclosure on perpetual debt

Particulars

For the year
ended
March 31, 2023

For the year
ended
March 31, 2022

Amount of Tunds raised threugh Perpetual debt
instrument during the year

Nil

Nit

Particulars

As at
Mareh 31,2023

As at
March 31,2022

Principal amount owtstanding as at year end.

Percentage of the amouns of Perpetual debt of the
atnount of its Tier [ Capitat

Unpaid interest on Perpetual debt

45000
8.37%

436.00
i4.15%%

There are no amount due and outstanding 10 be eredited to investor education & protection Fund as at March 31, 2023 and at March 31, 2022

Off balane sheet SPV sponsored -NIL (Previows year NIL)
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Edclweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 3%, 2023 (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in miflions)

(xxxi} Disclosure on liquidity risk

a}

b)

c)

d}

e)

As required in terms of paragraph 3 of RBI Circular RBIf2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/3.10,001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 on
Liguidity Risk Management Framewsotk for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Invesiment Companies,

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings) Asat

March 31, 2023
Number of significant counterparties® 12
Amaount of borrowings from significant counterparties 2,553.76
% of Total deposits NA
% of Total liabilities** 51.2%%

* “Sigmificant counterparty™ is defined as a single counterparty or group of conneeted or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for mote than
1% of the NBFC-NDSI's total liabilities

** “Total liabilities ™ refers to total external Jiabilitics (i.c. excluding total equity).

Tap 20 large deposits

The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company repistered with Reserve Bank of India, does not
aceept public deposits.

Top 10 Borrowings As at
March 31, 2023
Amount of Borrewings from top 10 lenders 2,402.80
% of Total Borrowings 67.62%
Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product* As at March 31, 2023
Amount “ of Total Liabilities**

Market Borrowings

Non Conventible Debentures 48088 17.87%

Perpetual and Sub-ordinated Debentures 2,190.60 44.00%
Other Borrowings

Term Loans 266.39 5.35%

Cash Credit Lines 355.76 7.15%

Others 83.45 1.68%

* "significant instrument/product” is defined as a single insrument/product of group of similar instruments/praducts which in aggregate amount ‘o
more than 194 of the NBFC-NDS1's total Tabilities.

** *Total liabilities " refers 1o total extemnal Habilities (i.e. excluding total equiy).

Stock Ratios Asat

Mareh 31, 2023
Commercial papers a3 2 %6 of total public fands* 0.00%
Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities 0.00%
Commercial papers as a % of total assets 0.00%
Norn~convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public fands 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of iotal Habilities 0.60%
Mon-convertible debentures (eriginal maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assets 0.00%
Other short-term liabilites**, if any as a % of total public funds 11.60%
Other short-term liabilities**, if any as a % of total liabilitics 8.82%
(rher short-term liabilities**, if any as a % of total assets 4.25%

* “Total public funds” refers to the aggrepate of Debt securities, Borrowing other thian debt secusities and Subordinated linbilities.
** *Other shori-term {inbilities™ refers 1o the borrowing in short term in noture..




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in miflions}

f

59.

Institutienal set-up for ligaidity risk management

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Assct Liability Management Comumittee and the Risk Management Comimittee.

The Asset Lizbility Management Committee, inter alia

* Implement and administer guidelines on Assct-Liability Management approved by the Board and its revision, if any;

« Monitor the asset ligbility gap and overcome the assctuiability mismatches, interest risk exposure, ete.; Strategize action to mitigate risk associated
with the asset liability gap;

» Develap risk policies and procedures and verify adherence to various risk parameters and prudeniial limits; review the risk moniloring system and
ensure effective risk management; and

* Ensure that the credit and investment exposure 1o any party / Company f group of partics or companies does not exceed the internatly set limits as
well as statutory limits as prescribed by Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

» Company has a Liquidity Contingency Policy in piace 1o ensure varfous liguidity parameters are defined and tracked regutarly. Liquidity Management
Team is provided with update on expected liquidity shortfatls in Mormal as well as Stress seenatie.

» the Company has ensured maintenance of a Liquidity Cushion in the form of Mutual Funds and liquid fixed deposits with banks, cte. These assets
carry minimal credit risk and can be liquidated in a very short period of time, A comfortable liquidity cushion is maintained of the borrowings, These
would be to take care of immediate obligstions while continuing te honour our commitments as a going concern.

* There are availabie lines of eredil from banks which are drawable on notice which further augment the available sources of funds.

Details of Resolution plan implemented under the Reselution Framework for COVID-19 related stress as per cireular dated August 6, 2020,
Format B - for the year ended 31 March 2023

Exposure to aceounts
classified as Standard

Of (A) amount

Exposare to accounts
classified as Standard

conseguent to OFf {A), aggregate debt written off Of (A} amount paid by conseyuent fo
Type of borrewer implementation of that slipped into NPA during the half. the borrowers during implementation of
resolution plan — Position]  during the hakf-year fear the half-year resolution plan — Position
as at the end of the : as at the end of this half-
previeus half-year (A) year
Pessonal Loans - - - . N
Corporate persons* 44.72 - - 44,72 -
Of which, MSMEs - . . . .
Others - - - - -
Tatal 44.72 - - 44.72 -

*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016




Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Notes to the financisl siatements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

60. Breach of covenant

As required in tenns of paragraph B of Section I of cireular RBI2022-23/26 DOR ACC.REC.No. 20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated April 19, 2622 -
Diselosute in Financial Statements- Notes 10 Accounts of NBFCs.

During the financial year ending as on 31 March 2023, there is no incidence of breach of covenant.

61. Unhedged foreign currency exposure

There is no any unhedged foreign foreign currency exposure as on 31 March 2023 (Previous year Nil).

62, Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

As required in terms of paragraph C of Section [T of circular RBI2022.23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.No, 20/21.04,618/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022 -
Disclosure in Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts of NBFCs.

Disclosure of Divergence for March 21, 2022

Sr. Particulars Amount
1 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as reported by the NBFC 248.05
2 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as assessed by the Reserve Bank of India/ NHB 856.45
3 Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1} (608.40}
4 Net NPAs as or March 31, 2022 as reported by the NBFC 185,24
3 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as assessed by Reserve Bank of India/ NHB 742.80
[ Divergence in Net NPAs (5-4) (547.56)
7 Provisions for NPAs as on Marcl}~ 31, 2022 as reported by the NBFC 62,81
8§ Provisions for NPAs 55 on March 31, 2022 as assessed by Reserve Bank of India/ NHB 113.65
o Divergence in provisioning (8-7} (50.84)
10 Repaorted Profit before tax and impairment loss on fnanclal instruments for the year ended 254.01

March 31, 2022
1t Reported Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2022 184.69
12 Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2022 after 184.69
considering the divergence in provisioning®

*adjusted Net Profit After Tax includes all adjustments made by RBI ie, including sdditional provision on financial instrument ete.

The Company has already made the provision of Rs. 47.50 Ma. in Stage 1 category on the identified foan assets which was in excess of provision of

Rs. 60.84 Mn as required according to IRACP norms , hence there was no P&E impact due to the same for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022,

Further, the Company has sold fhic said foan asset to Asset Reconstruction Company during the financiad year 202223,

e,




Edehveiss Retatl Finanee Lid
Notes to 1he fnanclal statement Inr she vear ended March 31, 2023 {cenlinoed)
(Currency-Indian rupees i nulien)

&3 Related Party Bisclusure

Notes lo Accounts of NHFCs.

As required in terms of parsgrph B of Section | o cireular RBI2622-23/26 DORACC.REC No. 202104 D1872022-23 dated Aprit 19, 122 - Discd

Parcnt . ok B Relalives nf Key Munugement
4 - ot ] ’ 3 E
Retated Party (As per awnership v contrals Subsidhurics Assuclatestlolm Ventures Key Management Persannel Permnnuel Otliers Tolal
Calegory
Means Asat March 31, AsatMarch 36, | Asat March 31, | Asat March | As at March 31,| As at March |As a8 Mareh 31,; As at March | As at March 31, Asat Mareh | As at March 35, As 2t March | As at March 3¢, | As at March 31,
2023 2022 2023 31, 2021 2023 31, 2022 23 1,1012 3 3L w2 02 31,2022 2021 2022
Maxmum during the year* o0 - 115000 3,500 2,150.80 1.500.08
Quistanding at year eml . - -
Maxinnn during the yer* - - -
Deposits
Dulstanding at year end - " -
Maximum during the yeart . .
PMacement of Depusits
Cutstanding at year cod - -
Masimmum during the year® 70,60 . 450.00 2.640 1,520,00 2,640.00
Adbvances
Cutstauding at yoar end 300.40 - - 355000 30.00 3,550.00
Zux:::.u— purcitase during R _ 4166.40 $2173 4,166.40 12123
the yeur
fhvestints Maximum sale during the . . 425220 B 425220 .
year o
Ouistanding at year epd*** - - 1,300.87 47250 EAO0K7 471,50
Purchasc of fived ather asscls - - - N4 - - 0.04
Safe af Fixed/Other xsels - - 14 0,30 - 14 0.30
Intercat Paid # 041 - T 66 05 . - 7162 46.05
Interest Roceived! 2072 - 174,44 J07.EY - - 195.17 307.89
Crher Refer Note-1} 3648 33,78 1.091.20 REL7S - 03z 2423 26,91 L,151.92 342,80

Note:
1} As requared in above refernnd circatar. the Company is tesited to specify item if 1otal for the itent is more than § per conl of wiaf refated party (ransagtion. while calevlating 5 per ceat lintit, the Company has taken sum of all transactions such as loan given, laan iaken, purchase and sale el invesunenl, secutitics, income &
expenses, meome v vxeluding closing balance of assas, liabilities. Others include total of al transactions (exeloding elosing balances) which are less than $ pereconr mdividually

* Maxiinum sing]
**Including fellow
‘e

ansicton valbe entered amengst any of fellow subsidiary is considered,. In case investment, nasimum single trnsaction value considered
ibsliaries, dilezprises over which contrel i exercised by the parent company el Alternative Investment Funds
tor al fair value

Alamorhised v
$ Includas loun given
# Interest Expense/income recorded iy P&L

i eveio o



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

64. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year presentation.

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 100515W

per Mayurcsh V. Zele
Partner
Membership no: 150027

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 16, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

e Do

Gattani Phanindranath Kakarla
Director Director
DIN: 05124763 DIN: 02076676

Hitesh Bhadada
Chief Financial Officer
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